CITY OF GLOUCESTER
LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 18th October 2011 at 18:30
North Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester

Membership: Clirs. Noakes (Chair), Porter (Vice-Chair), Tracey, Durrant, C. Witts,
Ravenhill, Wilson, Field, Dallimore, Hansdot, Mozol, Patel and Toleman

AGENDA

TRAINING SESSION FOR MEMBERS ON TAXI/PRIVATE HIRE DISCIPLINARY
PROCEDURES
**At the conclusion of the meeting there will be a private training session on
taxi/private hire disciplinary procedures lasting no longer than 45 minutes. All
Members are requested to stay for this important training™*

1.  VIEWING OF MERCEDES S320 CDI, REGISTRATION NUMBER M6 NCD IN
NORTH WAREHOUSE CAR PARK AT 6.30 PM.

All Licensing and Enforcement Committee Members are requested to gather in
North Warehouse Car Park at 18.30 hours to inspect the vehicle which is the
subject of agenda item 8.
The main meeting will then start promptly at 18.35 hours.

2. APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive from Members, declarations as to personal and/or prejudicial interests
and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please see Notes 1
and 2 overleaf.

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 -8)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the two meetings held on 16™ August
2011.

5. MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES (Pages 9 - 16)



Licensing and Enforcement Committee Tuesday, 18 October 2011
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 30" August
2011.

6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

To receive any questions from members of the public provided that a question does
not relate to:

e Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or
e Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments
in respect of individual Council Officers

7. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (10 MINUTES, MAXIMUM 3 MINUTES PER
PERSON)

To receive any petitions and deputations provided that no such petition is in relation
to:

e Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or
e Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings

8. APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE BY MR SELWYN
LLOYD-TAYLOR, UNDER SECTION 48 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 (Pages 17 - 36)

Report of the Group Manager, Environmental Health and Regulatory Services.

9. STREET TRADING APPEAL - HOT FOOD UNIT, CEMETERY ROAD,
GLOUCESTER (Pages 37 - 48)

Report of the Group Manager — Services, Facilities and Support
10. TYPES OF HACKNEY VEHICLES (Pages 49 - 80)
Report of the Group Manager for Environmental Health and Regulatory Services.

11. MEMBERS UPDATE AND 3 YEAR WORK PLAN FOR LICENSING AND
ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE (Pages 81 - 86)

Report of the Group Manager for Environmental Health and Regulatory Services.
12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday 13" December 2011, at 6.30 p.m.



Licensing and Enforcement Committee Tuesday, 18 October 2011

Julian Wain
Chief Executive

Notes

1. A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater
extent than other people in the District:-

(@) the well being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor,
their family or any person with whom they had a close association;

(b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any
company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class
of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or

(d) the Councillor’'s registrable financial and other interests.

2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who
has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member's
personal interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s
judgement of the public interest.

Please  contact Democratic  Services. No. 01452  396125/e-mail:
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk if you have a general query on any
agenda item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or
would like information on any decision taken by the Council.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s
Website - www.gloucester.gov.uk

If you would like a translation of agenda/minutes/reports or

would like a large text version or an audio version please

contact the Democratic and Electoral Services Manager
and we will try to accommodate your needs.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE

MEETING : Tuesday, 16th August 2011

PRESENT : Clirs. Noakes (Chair), Porter (Vice-Chair), Tracey, Durrant, C. Witts,
Ravenhill, Field, Dallimore, Patel and Toleman

Officers in Attendance

Rebecca Tuck, Licensing Enforcement Officer

Carl Knights, Licensing and Enforcement Officer

Gill Ragon, Group Manager, Environmental Health and Regulatory
Services

Lisa Wilkes, Food Safety and Licensing Service Manager

Steve Isaac, Solicitor

APOLOGIES : Clirs. Wilson, Hansdot and Mozol

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
20. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19" July 2011 were confirmed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

21. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
There were no questions from the public.

22. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (10 MINUTES, MAXIMUM 3 MINUTES PER
PERSON)

There were no petitions or deputations.

23. SECTION 48 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1976 - APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE BY MR
LUKE BENNETT

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer outlined the appeal by Mr Luke Bennett
against an officer decision to refuse to issue a private hire vehicle licence to vehicle
Vauxhall Vectra SRI Nav, registration number FP06 PPZ, on the grounds that it did
not meet the age specification required by the Council’s policy on the age of
vehicles. The vehicle was first registered with the DVLA on 2" June 2006. Mr
Bennett's original application had been received on the 27" July 2011 and was
followed up with some additional information requested by the Licensing and
Enforcement Officer on the 28™ July 2011. This meant that the vehicle had failed to
meet, by a period of 8 weeks, the City Council’s specific policy relating to age and a
vehicle’s acceptance for licensing on the first occasion.



Page 2

LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE
16.08.11

Mr Bennett was not currently a licensed private hire driver with Gloucester City
Council. Due to financial constraints he was awaiting the outcome of the vehicle
licence application before applying for a private hire driver licence.

The City Council was empowered under the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 to licence private hire vehicles and to apply conditions to the
issue of such licences.

Council policy for the first time of licensing a private hire vehicle which came into
effect on 1% June 2010 stipulated ‘vehicles will not be accepted for licensing on the
first occasion after 5 years from the date of first registration, regardless of whether it
was previously licensed anywhere else in the UK, or re-licensed 10 years from the
date of first registration’.

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer reminded Members that in May 2003, the
Council’'s General Conditions for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing
contained the wording ‘will not normally be accepted’ in place of the above, thus
allowing Officer and Member discretion when deciding the merits of an individual
case. It was noted that at present, the discretion rested only with Members to
exempt vehicles from Council policy on an individual merits basis.

Members were advised that they had two options:-

(a) To refuse the application on the grounds that the vehicle fell outside of Council
policy on the age of vehicles that can be accepted for licensing on the first
occasion.

Or

(b) To accept the application on the grounds that the vehicle was of such a high
standard for its age, that Council policy should be departed from in this
particular case.

Members inspected the vehicle and noted that it was in excellent condition, of low
mileage, and had passed the MOT and Council vehicle inspection check.

Mr Bennett addressed the Committee. He commented that he was unaware of
Gloucester City Council’s policy, having previously been a private hire driver with
Cheltenham Borough Council. He asked the Members to reconsider the officer
decision as he did not have the means to buy another vehicle.

The following points were discussed by the Committee:-

e The fact that the City Council’s policy clearly stated 5 years and that this
was, in fact, a relaxation from a previous policy which had stipulated 4 years.

e The vehicle was agreed to be in excellent condition for its age but it was not
an executive class vehicle and was not an exceptional vehicle of its type.

e Members wished to act fairly and flexibly, but at the same time they needed
to operate in accordance with the policy.

e The ‘trade’ was supportive of the 5 year policy.

RESOLVED



Page 3

LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE
16.08.11

That the application be refused on the grounds that it fell outside of the Council’s
policy on the age of vehicles that could be accepted for licensing on the first
occasion.

24. FEES FOR VEHICLES, OPERATORS AND DRIVERS LICENCES 2011/2012

The Chair introduced the report which aimed to determine the level of Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Licence fees for 2011/12. The paper recommended an
increase in existing taxi fees and charges of 2.5% from 17" August 2011.

However, following consultation with the ‘trade’, there had been a further evaluation
of the figures and the Committee was now recommended to agree a zero increase
in existing fees and charges.

The Food Safety and Licensing Services Manager confirmed that the “trade” had
withdrawn their objection, based on the revised recommendation.

RESOLVED

That there would be no increase in existing taxi fees and charges for the year
2011/12.

25. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Members were advised that following changes to the structure of the Licensing and
Enforcement Committee that there would not be the necessity to have monthly
meetings and that it was intended to hold quarterly meetings in 2012 with existing
calendar dates being reserved in case they were needed for Licensing Sub-
Committees.

RESOLVED

1. That the next full meeting of the Licensing and Enforcement Committee
would be held on 18" October 2011 at 6.30 pm. .

2. That the Democratic Services Officer reissue a list of forward dates along
with reserve dates for Sub-Committees.

Time of commencement: 18:30 hours
Time of conclusion: 18:55 hours
Chair



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

MEETING : Tuesday, 16th August 2011
PRESENT : ClIrs. Noakes, Porter, C. Witts, Ravenhill, Field, Dallimore and
Toleman

Officers in Attendance

Rebecca Tuck, Licensing Enforcement Officer

Gill Ragon, Group Manager, Environmental Health and Regulatory
Services

Steve Isaac, Solicitor

Sonia Tucker (Secretary)

APOLOGIES : Clirs.

26.

27.

28.

29.

ELECTION OF CHAIR

Councillor Noakes was elected as Chair.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED -

That the press and public be excluded during the following items of business on
the grounds that it was likely, in view of the nature of business to be transacted
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public were
present during consideration of these items there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of section 1001 of the Local
Government Act, 1972 as amended

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 -
DISCIPLINARY MATTER - HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER - LICENCE NO.
HCDO095 - MISS LR (REF ES21115)

The Chair welcomed the licence holder and her representatives and outlined the
procedure for the hearing.

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer presented the report to the Sub-Committee
and advised of the circumstances of the offence. The Sub-Committee was advised
that the purpose of the hearing was to determine whether, in view of the offence,
the licence holder was a ‘fit and proper person’ to continue to hold a Hackney
Carriage Drivers Licence. The Sub-Committee was referred to the paragraphs of
the adopted guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions and outlined the
courses of the action available to the Sub-Committee:



Page 6
LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE

16.08.11
. To take no action
o To issue a written warning
. To suspend the Hackney Carriage Licence for a period of time to be

determined by the Committee but not for a period exceeding the expiry date
of the current licence.

o To revoke the licence and if the committee so determine to consider whether
to give an indication of a suitable time period to elapse before a fresh
application would be considered.

The licence holder indicated that she had no questions to ask of the Officer and did
not have anything further to say to the Sub-Committee.

One of the licence holder’s representatives made supportive statements on her
behalf and gave some background details on her personal circumstances. The
representative also stated that she was looking into the possibility of challenging the
Caution which had been given by the Police and accepted by the licence holder. It
was also confirmed that the licence holder had not been advised by the Duty
Solicitor at the time that she could challenge the Caution.

The Chair invited the Sub-Committee members to ask questions of the licence

holder:-

. The licence holder was asked how long she had been a Hackney Carriage
Driver and her age.

. What action she had taken to date to overturn the Caution

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer then summed up the case. All parties apart
from the Solicitor and the Democratic Services Officer withdrew from the room
whilst the Sub -Committee deliberated and made its decision.

The Sub-Committee considered the information contained within the report,
including the Council’s guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions and with
regard to the driver's rights under the European Convention on Human Rights,
evidence from the Driver, the Department for Transport Guidance, the Council’s
own Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing policy, and the legal implications
as set out in the report.

On re-entering the room, all parties were advised of the decision.
RESOLVED -

That Miss LR, Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence (HCD 095) be issued with a final
written warning. In making the decision, the licence holder was reminded that that
whilst violence in any circumstances was unacceptable, the Committee did not
believe there was evidence that Miss LR was not a fit and proper person.

Time of commencement: 19:30 hours
Time of conclusion: 20:10 hours
Chair



Page 7

LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE
16.08.11



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda Item 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

MEETING : Tuesday, 30th August 2011

PRESENT :  Clirs. Noakes, Porter and Toleman
Officers
Gill Ragon, Group Manager, Environmental Health and Regulatory
Services

Lisa Wilkes, Food Safety and Licensing Service Manager
Steve Isaac, Solicitor
Philippa Finnegan, Licensing Officer

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR
Councillor Jim Porter was elected as Chair.
2. INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURES

The Chair introduced the Members of the Sub-Committee and Officers in
attendance and asked the Applicant and Interested parties to introduce themselves
at the appropriate time.

He then explained that following the presentation of the officer's report, the
Applicant would have an opportunity to present their case followed by the interested
parties. There would be an opportunity for questions following each of the above
stages before each party had an opportunity to sum up with the Applicant being last
to speak. Members of the Sub-Committee would then withdraw to consider their
decision.

In addition to the Members of the Sub-Committee and Council officers in
attendance the following were present:

Applicant’s Agent and Representative
Mr Anil Bhawsar
Interested Parties:-

Councillor David Brown and Mrs Brown
Councillor Jim Beeley

Councillor Declan Wilson

County Councillor Bill Crowther

Mr Mark Carter

Mr Peter Quinnell

Ms Pat Bailey

Mr Stuart Bonser

Mr Thomas Llewellyn



Page 10

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

Miss M Shute

Mr and Mrs Bolton
Ms Sharon Coldrick
Ms Mel Wild

Ms Sharon Roberts
Ms Shirley Davies

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE FOR 102 INSLEY GARDENS,
HUCCLECOTE, GLOUCESTER

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer presented the report on an application for a
new premises licence made under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for 102
Insley Gardens, Hucclecote, Gloucester GL4 4BS, received from Mrs Rajeenadevi
Raventherakumar. The application was for the retail sale of alcohol from a new
‘convenience' type store at the above address and was made in accordance with
Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

The convenience store was in a small parade of retail units comprising two salons
and a gym. The premises were formerly a shop and later used as offices. Members
were advised there are no planning issues with the site.

The Applicant requested the following licensable activity:

e The supply of alcohol (Section M of the Operating Schedule) for
consumption off the premises from 06:00 to 22:00 hours seven days a
week.

The Applicant had set out in Section P of the Operating Schedule the measures
proposed to be taken to promote the four licensing objectives if the application was
accepted.

It was noted that should the application be accepted, the measures in the Operating
Schedule would become properly constructed conditions to be applied to the
licence.

Members were advised that the Gloucestershire Constabulary Licensing Unit had,
proposed that the following conditions should be added to the licence and this had
been agreed by the Applicant.

1. All spirits to be kept behind the counter.

2. The CCTV system shall be maintained in good working order, shall
record at all times the premises are open and recordings shall be kept for
a minimum of 14 days and be provided on DVD to officers of the Council,
Trading Standards and the police on request.



Page 11

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

3. The Challenge 21 (or equivalent scheme) shall be adopted so that any
customer attempting to purchase alcoholic liquor who appears to be
under the age of 21 shall be asked for an accredited photographic proof
of their age (e.g. passport, photo driving licence or a PASS approved
card) and that a sale shall not be made unless this evidence is produced.
This will only be treated as a breach where the customer subsequently
turns out to be under 18 years of age.

There were no representations from the other Responsible Authorities.

Objections had been received from residents in neighbouring streets to the
convenience store and these were attached to the report. Some of those residents
were present as Interested Parties with the intention of speaking at the appropriate
time.

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer reminded the Sub-Committee that
representations needed to be relevant and not vexatious or frivolous. In other
words, they had to relate to the proposed licensable activity and its likely effect on
at least one of the licensing objectives. They should not be borne out of malice or
dispute and had to be serious.

It was noted that residents’ concerns with regard to the licensing objectives related
amongst other things, to a perceived propensity for anti social behaviour and under-
age drinking, should the licence be issued.

Other issues raised involved parking and delivery times and it was noted that these
matters would still be a concern whether or not the alcohol licence was granted.

The Licensing and Enforcement Officer then summarised the application:-

Having considered the application, any relevant representations, the legislative
provisions, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the Home Secretary’s
Guidance, Members had the following options as considered necessary to promote
the Licensing Obijectives:

(@) To accept the application and attach conditions as consistent with the
operating schedule.

(b) To accept the application and modify the conditions of the licence which
includes altering, omitting or adding new conditions.

(c) To reject the whole, or part of the application.
Members were reminded that the Licensing Objectives were:-

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder;

(b) public safety;

(c) the prevention of public nuisance;

(d) the protection of children from harm.



Page 12

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

The Applicant’s Agent indicated he had no questions to ask of the Licensing and
Enforcement Officer.

APPLICANT’S AGENT’S ADDRESS
Mr Anil Bhawsar, Agent for Mrs Raventherakumar addressed the Committee.

The Agent explained that the Applicant was keen to be seen as a responsible
retailer and that she was a responsible, community-minded retailer who wanted to
create a livelihood which would benefit the local community. The objections from
the Interested Parties were a concern to her. She was fully aware of the licensing
objectives and that conditions might need to be attached to the licence, if granted.
She already held a personal licence at another establishment and would be the
Designated Person Supervisor (DPS) at these premises if the licence was granted.

QUESTIONS FROM INTERESTED PARTIES AND MEMBERS TO THE AGENT

The following questions/comments were given by the Interested Parties. The
Agent’s response is shown underneath each question/comment with any further
comments made by the Licensing and Enforcement Officer shown in brackets:-

In view of the concerns of residents, would the Applicant be prepared to reduce the
opening hours of the business?

It was confirmed that after receiving the objections the Applicant had agreed to
reduce the opening hours by one hour to 9 pm at night. The opening hours of the
Store would be 6.00 am to 9 pm with licensing hours between 9.00 am and 9 pm,
Monday to Sunday.

How many deliveries and what type?
As a small concern, most deliveries would be of groceries between 9 am and 5 pm,
apart from newspapers which would need to be delivered early.

Parking? How would deliveries happen, bearing in mind double yellow lines outside
establishment?

There was a nearby layby and parking behind the premises.

It was pointed out to the Agent by the enquirer that this layby was used by another
business.

Liaison with local police and Police Licensing Officer

The Applicant had contacted Andy Cook the police Licensing Officer at Waterwells
who had drawn up the conditions to be added to the licence, if granted. The
Applicant had not contacted the local Police Station at Hucclecote, but intended to
do so if the licence was granted.

During the discussion, the Agent asked one of the Councillors who was attending
as an Interested Party whether he had contacted the local Police Station when the
application was received. The Interested Party had not, although he did state that
he was in regular contact with the local Police about anti-social behaviour in the
area.

Who would be on duty in the store?



Page 13

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

There would be up to two people manning the store at any one time, depending on
how busy it was.

(The Licensing and Enforcement Officer confirmed that the Applicant could
empower another licence holder to sell alcohol in her absence).

What was the Applicant’s understanding of public nuisance and anti-social
behaviour?

Anyone who was abusive to staff or customers would not be tolerated. That would
be considered as anti-social behaviour. The Applicant was an experienced retailer
with knowledge and awareness and would be able to identify such behaviour.

Litter
The Agent confirmed that the Applicant would supply any extra bins considered
necessary and that staff would litter-pick outside the store.

Would the property be alarmed and would this link to the Police Station?
It would be alarmed, but the exact type of alarm and its linkages was not known.

Height of counters/displays in the store
Displays would be kept to a low level so that staff had good visibility within the
Store. CCTV would be used.

Would contact details of Responsible Authorities be displayed?
These would not be displayed directly, but near to the counter.

Who would be responsible for public safety, health and safety checks, assessing
fire risks?
The Premises Supervisor.

Awareness of responsible retailing. Log/register — could this be inspected by
anyone?

Log would be maintained as required by Police and Trading Standards.

(The Licensing and Enforcement Officer confirmed that for data protection reasons
this log could not be viewed directly by members of the public, but could be shared
with the Licensing Authority. It was further confirmed that the programme for
licensing inspections was set following an overview of the premises when a ‘score’
was given. Should problems emerge following the granting of the licence this could
lead to a subsequent hearing to decide whether the licence should be taken away).

What measures would be taken to avoid anti-social behaviour?

The Agent said this was difficult to predict because there had not been any
instances of this so far. However, the Applicant was a mature person who would
exercise due care and attention and assume responsibility for behaviour both within
and outside the premises.

Why had this particular property been chosen for this business?
The Applicant had not looked into the history of the premises, but considered it to
be an appropriate place for a business of this type.

Would the Applicant be willing to reinstate the rear entrance to the premises to
facilitate deliveries and use the side entrance?

5



Page 14

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

The Applicant was not aware there had been a rear entrance previously but was
willing to look in to the possibility of reinstating it. The Agent confirmed that the side
entrance could be used for deliveries instead of the front.

Residents had concerns about under-age drinking and there were fears that older
people would buy alcohol to pass on to those who were under-age. What steps
would the Applicant take to allay these fears?

The Applicant was trained to observe such behaviour. Customers would be warned
they would be fined and that Police would investigate and they would not be served
in the Store again.

RESIDENTS’ STATEMENTS AND REASONS FOR OBJECTING TO THE
LICENCING APPLICATION

e Concerns that neighbouring streets would become a ‘rat-run’ with vehicles
using them as short-cuts to access the store.

e Lessons should be learned from a similar premises at Dinglewell in
Hucclecote where alcohol was sold and anti-social behaviour had resulted.

e Area was full of alleyways, green areas and car parks where individuals
could hide, drink, and then potentially mis-behave. Resultant problems could
be litter and vandalism.

e Gloucester already had a high incidence of alcohol related illnesses.

e Experience of problems caused by ‘Bargain Booze’ which had now ceased
trading.

e Opening hours were a concern.

¢ Whilst residents were encouraged to ring ‘999°, Police did not attend anti-
social behaviour incidents promptly.

e Groups of drunken youths/children were intimidating.

e There appeared to be an emphasis on the sale of alcohol at the store rather
than it being a convenience store.

e There were a lot of elderly and vulnerable residents in the neighbourhood.

e The neighbourhood was highly residential and the store would have a
detrimental effect on the residents’ enjoyment of the amenities.

e A female only business opposed the application. The owner of this business
already experienced vandalism of her CCTV camera and lighting in the
vicinity where her female clients parked.

e Reference was made to an academic commentary on the Daniel Thwaites v
Wirral Borough Magistrates Court case and its relevance to this application.

e There was a strong feeling that there should be no licence granted, but that if
one was issued it should be only up to 6 pm in the evenings and that there
should be no sale of alcohol at all on Sundays.

e There had been two applications for a take-away at these premises which
had both failed and this application was not dissimilar. The granting of the
licence would disturb a quiet area.

e Local police, who could not be named or identified, had concerns which had
not been addressed in the decision by Andy Cook, Police Licensing Officer.

e The Licensing Act was intended to give individuals control of what went on in
their area.

e Concerns were expressed about parking and possible wearing of the road
surface by lorries.



Page 15

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

FINAL STATEMENTS

e The Licensing and Enforcement Officer summed up the application and
confirmed the recommendations before Members.

e One of the Interested Parties spoke on behalf of those present and handed a
petition against the granting of the licence to the Chair. He said there was a
lot of opposition from residents. Anti-social behaviour was the main concern.
It was felt that the business was in the wrong place. The fact that the
Applicant was willing to reduce the opening hours by one hour to 9 pm was
of small comfort. Local businesses as well as residents objected to the
proposal. It was not felt that the answers given by the Agent were
authoratitive. On behalf of the Interested Parties he asked the Committee to
reject the application.

e The Agent concluded by saying that he knew residents felt strongly and that
the Applicant sought to be a responsible trader. He reminded them that if
they felt that the business was not being run properly that the licence was
subject to review. The Applicant was seeking to run a convenience store
and the sale of alcohol was part of this. He did not feel that the implications
outlined by the residents could happen in that way, but if they did, he was
confident that the Police, City Council, and Trading Standards would take
steps to make sure the ‘right thing was done’.

RESOLVED

The Committee considered the application made under Section 17 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for a premises licence by Insley Gardens Convenience Store (102 Insley
Gardens, Gloucester) and having had regard to the representations made by the
Interested Parties, evidence from the Applicant, the Home Secretary’s Guidance,
the Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy and the Legal Implications as set
out in the report, have decided to grant the application.

REASONS AND CONDITIONS

The licence was granted on condition that licensing hours were restricted to 9.00 in
the morning to 7 pm in the evenings, Monday to Sunday. The reason for restricting
the opening hours was that the Sub-Committee had heard sufficient concerns from
the numerous interested local parties that longer hours would not uphold the
licensing objectives in respect of:-

e The prevention of crime and disorder.
e Public Safety
¢ and the prevention of public nuisance

in the highly residential area that the facility would serve.



Page 16

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
30.08.11

The Applicant was also highly recommended to investigate the re-opening of a rear
access from the store directly to the car park to facilitate deliveries to the premises.

The Applicant and residents were reminded that under Section 53 of the Licensing
Act, that Interested Parties and Responsible Authorities could apply to the Council
at any time for a review of the licence granted because of a matter arising at the
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives listed in section 2.2
of the report.

Time of commencement: 18:30 hours
Time of conclusion: 22:00 hours
Chair



Page 17 Agenda Item 8

Gloucester City Council

Committee : LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE

Date

18 OCTOBER 2011

Subject : APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE

LICENCE BY MR SELWYN LLOYD TAYLOR UNDER
SECTION 48 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976

Ward : ALL
Report by : GROUP MANAGER, ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH &
REGULATORY SERVICES
No. of Appendices : A: EXTRACT FROM PRIVATE HIRE RULE BOOK JUNE
2010 ENTITLED ‘VEHICLE AGE AND TESTING’
B: LIBRARY PHOTOGRAPH SHOWING MERCEDES S
CLASS LONG WHEELBASE
C: COPY OF APPLICATION PAPERWORK
D: EMAIL FROM MR TAYLOR IN SUPPORT OF HIS
APPLICATION
Reference No. : ES21122
1.0 Purpose of Report
1.1 To outline to Members an application by Mr Selwyn Lloyd Taylor for a new private
hire vehicle licence for a Mercedes S320 CDI long wheelbase registration number
M6 NCD. The application is before the Committee on the grounds that it does not
meet the age specification required by the Council’s policy on the age of vehicles.
2.0 Recommendations
2.1 Having considered the application, Council policy and Mr Taylor's submission,

Members have the following options:

(@) To refuse the application on the grounds that the vehicle falls outside of
Council policy on the age of vehicles that can be accepted for licensing on the
first occasion.

(b) To accept the application on the grounds that the vehicle is of such a high
standard for its age that Council policy should be departed from in this
particular case.

3.0 Background
3.1 The City Council has statutory power under the Local Government (Miscellaneous

Provisions) Act 1976 to licence private hire vehicles. The Council is able to adopt a
policy in relation to the licensing of private hire vehicles and is able to attach
conditions to the grant of such licences.

ES21122 1




3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 18

Private hire vehicles are licensed under section 48 of the above Act, which states:

“48 Licensing of private hire vehicles.

(1) Subject to the provisions of this Part of this Act, a district council may on the
receipt of an application from the proprietor of any vehicle for the grant in
respect of such vehicle of a licence to use the vehicle as a private hire vehicle,
grant in respect thereof a vehicle licence:

Provided that a district council shall not grant such a licence unless they are
satisfied —

(a) that the vehicle is —

(i) suitable in type, size and design for use as a private hire vehicle;

(i) not of such design and appearance as to lead any person to believe
that the vehicle is a hackney carriage;

(iii) in a suitable mechanical condition;

(iv) safe; and

(v) comfortable;

(b) that there is in force in relation to the use of the vehicle a policy of insurance
or such security as complies with the requirements of [F1Part VI of the
Road Traffic Act 1988],

and shall not refuse such a licence for the purpose of limiting the number of vehicles
in respect of which such licences are granted by the council.”

Current Council policy and conditions are contained in the Private Hire Rule Book
which was approved by Members at their meeting on 19 January 2010 and came
into force on 1 June 2010.

The current policy includes a requirement in relation to the age of a vehicle at the
first time of licensing (Appendix A Extract from Private Hire Rule Book) and states:-

“3.22 Vehicles must comply with the following conditions in relation to age and
length of service:

a vehicles will not be accepted for licensing on the first occasion after 5 years
from the date of first registration regardless of whether it was previously
licensed anywhere else in the UK, or re-licensed after 10 years from the date of
first registration.”

An earlier edition (May 2003) of the Council’s General Conditions for Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing contained the wording “will not normally be
accepted” in place of the above thus allowing for Officer and Member discretion
when deciding the merits of a particular case.

ES21122 2



4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Page 19

Information

Mr Taylor has been a licensed Private Hire Driver since 2 May 2008. He works for
RJL Gloucester Limited T/A Andy Cars, Eastgate Street, Gloucester specialising as
a chauffeur.

The Mercedes M6 NCD (Appendix B Library Photograph showing Mercedes S
Class Long Wheelbase) was first registered with the DVLA on 23 March 2005
making it in excess of 6 years old since registration. The current mileage is
approximately 120,000.

Mr Taylor submitted a request to licence the vehicle which was received on
5 September 2011. All relevant paperwork is attached at Appendix C.

Mr Taylor's email at Appendix D details his justification for the Council to depart
from its age policy.

The vehicle will be available for inspection by Members during the Committee
meeting in order that they may make a first-hand appraisal of it's suitability for
licensing.

Conclusions
Members are referred to the options at 2.1(a) and (b) of this report.

Following the case of R v Hyndburn Borough Council, ex parte Rauf and Kasim (12
Feb 1992, QBD, unreported) it is possible to have a policy in relation to the age of
vehicles. However the policy cannot be an immutable rule, and as such the Council
cannot fetter its discretion by rigidly following the policy without treating each case
on its merits.

The current age policy was adopted by Members. As such the Committee has the
power to depart from the policy if the application is considered to be an exceptional
case and that the vehicle meets the criteria for licensing.

It should be borne in mind that the justification behind the age policy is in order to
maintain the standards of the licensed vehicle fleet and that furthermore, once
licensed, a vehicle may continue to be licensed up to the age of 10 years old
(Appendix A Extract from Private Hire Rule Book).

Should Members be satisfied that all criteria specified in s48(1) of the 1976 Act are
met, then the only justification for refusing the application is on the grounds that the
vehicle does not comply with the current Council policy.

If Members decide to depart from the policy in this instance, considered reasons will
be required in order to show the justification for departing from the policy. Members
should note that any decision to depart from the policy will set a precedent when
considering any future applications. While any future applications would need to be
considered on their own merits, if future cases could not be distinguished from this
application then the rationale followed in this case would need to be applied.

ES21122 3



Page 20

5.7 Should Members decide to follow Council policy and refuse the application
considered reasons will also have to be given.

6.0 Financial Implications

6.1  There are no financial implications relating to this report.

7.0 Legal Implications

7.1 There have been a number of legal cases regarding the appropriateness of
conditions that purport to restrict the age of vehicles for licensing. The most notable
case is referred to in paragraph 5.2 of the report.

7.2 It is lawful for the Council to impose a policy that no licence would be issued to a
vehicle over a certain age, but on any application the Council must consider it on
merit, to see if the vehicle meets the Council objectives behind the age restriction.
The objectives should include such matters as safety, reliability and comfort.

7.3 In making its decision, the Committee needs to give full reasons that are linked to
the reasoning behind the age restriction.

7.4  There is a right of appeal against a refusal to grant a Private Hire Vehicle Licence to
the Magistrates’ Court.

8.0 Risk Management Implications

8.1 The risk of an appeal to Magistrates should an inappropriate or unreasonable
decision be made and the potential for a financial penalty to be incurred.

9.1 People Impact Assessment (PIA)

9.1  PIA is not required for such Private Hire cases as there are no adverse impacts or
any risks to customers in the areas of gender, disability, age, ethnicity, religion,
sexual orientation or community cohesion.

Any Further Relevant Information
None

10.0 Other Corporate Implications

10.1 None

Background Papers :  Gloucester City Council Licensing Hearing Procedure

Published Papers :  The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Gloucester City Council’s Private Hire Rule Book

Person to Contact :  Anthony D Moseley, Licensing Enforcement Officer

Tel: 396322
E-mail: Anthony.david.moseley@gloucester.gov.uk

ES21122 4



Page 21

ES21122
APPENDIX A

EXTRACT FROM PRIVATE HIRE RULE BOOK JUNE 2010

Vehicle Age and Testing

3.22 Vehicles must comply with the following conditions in relation to age and length of
service:

a

vehicles will not be accepted for licensing on the first occasion after 5 years from
the date of the first registration regardless of whether it was previously licensed
anywhere else in the UK, or re-licensed after 10 years from the date of the first
registration.

the vehicle shall be removed from service on the 10th anniversary from the date of
the first registration, any outstanding licence shall be transferred onto a new
vehicle free of charge for the remainder of that current licence.

all vehicles must be tested annually to the current Licensing Authority standards.
Once the vehicle has reached the age of 8 years since manufacture, the vehicle
shall be tested at 6 monthly intervals until it has reached its service limit of 10
years since manufacture.

if the condition of the vehicle deteriorates below the acceptable standard set in the
Licensing Authority vehicle test at anytime during the working life of the vehicle,
the Licensing Officer reserves the right to withdraw the licence.



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23

ES21122
APPENDIX B

Mercedes S Class Long Wheelbase



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

. Eszif22
] have seen the ongmal of thl @i@c:ument APPENDIX C

" City Council

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE. HIRE
VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION

TYPE OF LICENCE APPLIED FOR:  Hackney Carriage [ Private Hire =
New Application  [&” Vehicle Transfer [J
1. APPLICANT
Sumame: 'T”""‘-°‘Q ...... Forengme(s)__w““- e (Tamd.
Address:

Postcode:

2. VEHICLE DETAIL>
a) Make:.., ME&C.COu—r$
b) ‘Modst: $'$m ........ -
d) Registration No.: .M. NC..
) Plate numibet(if previously’ assued)
h} Date of purchiiss: -]

D Is.any other personloompany connernod n :lhe propdetorshlp. keeplng, employlng or letﬂng for hire of the.
‘vehicla? ‘¥em/'No

" yes give theirnigme aﬂd‘ﬂddfas@andakﬁc“ﬂmuf@ O' IhVOlVGrﬁen‘: T TN T AP SRR PO TR P SRS FSNN
DECLARATION: .
* FI'We dec!are that the:information gtven by mein this application i3 comect to Ahe best. of iy knowledge and.
‘befief. end. enclose

D TheFaés Cash ‘CredivDeblt Card
(payable. at the: .co.;k on Ground Floor. Herbert Recaption) )
Proof of ownership, for example bl of salé le. receipt =
for the-money pzidifor’ the vshicts, involcaifor the
vehicle statingithat the' amcunt ‘dite" has been paid
In full, hire;purchagéiagreame ‘-'lnapplicants name, 0
:ﬁ//\ls Registration: document (or néw. sepers supplement)
M.O.T. & Vehicle: lnspecuon Cerﬂf
| will produce pmof of Hackney Camage I Private Hire:
Insurance Cover prior to‘thé issue of the vehlcle licérice ».B'
vi) NewAppiications — Meter Inspection Certificats’ !
o }.consent to the Coundll retalning my appuccmon ‘and; details; onils databasa(s) l'understand thet the Council
is:obliged to pass on information to ather: sta!utosy bodiag,tf fequested
'» f-have received-a: ‘copy of the: Council's' oondmons mies and*porxcle srelating to Privete, Hire :and' Heckney
Carriage Lloenstng and have read the guldance nofes ovetleaf 1 'have'read ‘and understend the conditions
-and undertake to comply with them.it a Vehicie. Licence: s gr*nted

‘Appllcants are advised that to make knowlnglydor recklessly 8 I‘also am:nment :or omit any’ Informatlon from ;
1 this application’is @ crimina)aftence. T e,

Applicanta. Signature; .. FEPRRPRN 1 { . OS .9.

RECEIA NO. 1rovereer e ceeeses Recalpt Date: oo e 1NSUPENCEIEXPITY DB oo
ENVIRGNMENTAL : HEALTH & REGULATORY SERVICES . HC/PH VLICAPP/20/04711
‘Gloucester Clty Councﬂ Tel 01452 396396 Fax 01 452 396207
‘Herbert Warehouse Email _here..ch={" loud

The Docks © Minicom 01452 396161
Gloucester 'GL1 2EQ M gloucester-g LY



‘Page 26

VTZO | have seporthesctiaimabiel this r:ioc:fj'
05/09/2011 FMH

‘rh'if cortificate has been issued according to-the conditiona and notas onthe back:ot thia csntificate.

Vehicls & Operator ServicesiAgency
-"', o Y N y - A ; -
Note: if yourhave:doubts as-to whether this certificate is valid, plsase use'the'service described In note-3 overieef to check.

; “MOT test number o ., Make

‘ _ . . ) Odoteter reading -
' 355882911097 ' MERCEDES _ . 114308 Miles
e ' . L 1
Registation mark Model , Testclass
. MBNCD. . s 320 3%
‘Vehidle identification of Eh;ﬁsis’ numiber Colour
WDR2201252A44753¢ STLVER
Expiry date issue dateitine
L s ] .
JANUARY T1th 2082 , ; JANUARY 12th 2011
(TWELVE) F vy (ELEVEN) 16:14
Additional Infamiation
) ‘
N/A
Advisary Notice Issyad :
* To preserve ‘the anniversary of the. expu-v d WNO e : 4 NO .-
date thé earliest you can preésent your
" \’eh.\.ClE for test lS 10/17/7011 Tost station:number ) 189283 |
For all: vehlcles with fiore than B passéenger’ ‘séats,
Seat belt m.stdlatlon N/A T Nuriber of seat betis fitled at N/A Pre_y’ipl_ss instaiatiof N/A
chetkedthistest A time ofinstaliation-check: i check date :
Issuers name In GAPITALS ] Signafire of dssuer -
C. A. WILD
!
Warning: 'A test ceftificate is nol.evidente that.the vehicle is in @ sausiaiun y wuramon, 3
Check cargfully that'the above.details.are corract. /— et —
Do not-accept-a-certificate which has been altered. : ‘
Affix stickerto (ngide of windscreen as a feminder
Reg Mark ACD
, . : inspaction Authonty }'
Make -MERCEDES .3 HEMPSTED MOTOR CEN'RRE LTD
pu ) CTLT L & UNIT 2F l‘,‘ ' :“‘
Test . pHYIBA. | g SPINNAKER PARK/ & - -* ¢ - %Y\
> 1891.8— + . - ..
Station L e HEMESTED LANE , \ 5
o > : . GLOUCESTER /
. JANUARY [ith 2012 ' ¥
¢ . eSS VRS 0144230724]
MOT Expiry (TWELVE) : GL2 6HS .

SBE4OERINS



. .. ... PRIVATE HIRE VERICLE INSPECTION SHEET

: ’Na'm'e‘-df Ap’isroved Testlrig Station

(/JMJAODOM

: 'fVehIcle Reglstratlon & Plate; No

[ Make & Model B

. 4
: hﬂnleage
ENGINE AND TRANSWSSION “PA > S | _ ~
Engme oll Ievel : / ’ / ‘
Water level radiator and ooonng system ]
Fuelleaks 7 T h/ - "’ ' N
Oil lsaks o~ | Ve, Slesi- g A bA? }
Englne and gearbox mounttngs - 7~ Al o . I
Securhy of starter and a|temator | B T . il
| orvebeits™ I .
INTERIOR b e
*Operaﬁon of‘Wibers /
‘Qpe{';ﬂog.of horm. - / i .
|-Coridition of windscreen i .
Fire Ex,tingui.s‘rA\.er,("lkg Powder) - ) // I .
" Firgtaid kit fitted and contents checked’ P! p 1
| Dobr locks/andies ih working order 7 K J
| 'Grab handies:condition/security ./ . .

Sealbé!tsi.q‘pg‘r'a_'lj_prilsecurity

Gondition of pedals

.| Handbrake In good working order

‘Se‘a'g.li\g clean and in goed condition

; “Tnterior Ilght' isiwérkiﬁg

ave Seen |ne qrigin

Ub[ U972(

Gloucester City Council
Herbert Warehouse
The Docks
Gloucester GL1 2EQ.

K1 A —

Tel 01452 396303 Fax 01452 396340
Email heretohelp@gloucester.gov. uk
Minicom 01452 396161
www.gloucéster.gov.uk




.
o

Page 28

“INTERIOR.Cont. ...

PASS

FAIL.

DEFECTS/ICOMMENTS

Heatingiventilation system.working

Headumngldoc. penels/carpets cleéan good l
condition

Luggage restramt fitted and worktng (not
saldons)

Doubls sided interior plate- dmplayed in
windscresn pouch

Twoiway radio/phone handsfree: kit safety-&

securely Installed
Spare’ wheeweck/braoe Thted and worklng

Meter securely mcunted in conspicuous -
sition (where fitted):

Tariff card dispayed in- prominent pesition’
{where meter ﬁtted) . e

EXTEB!OR )

-, PEEIRY

4

Bodywork in good condition
(dents/scratches/discoloration) .

Mirrors missing loose or damaged

Whee! tims missing or damaged

~Acnals intact

Extemal p)a!e fi rmly fixed to the mar -of
|_vehicle and In good condition

BExternal plate firmly fixed to the front of
" vehicle and in good condition

Ooor.pansls must:be fitted.and in good
| candition

ey

CHASS\S AND-GHASSIS: MOUNTED
: COVlPONENTS - s e

Ve wm iy e N -

| Staering componentslllnkage wear -and
1 Security

PFiay in king pinsthrust.bearings:

["VWheels do notfouton fall ook

"Wheel beanngs far eXCoSSe play

‘Power steerl 'ing”bgpératiéh and leaks

t TR v A

‘ sp'lngs fro cracks ‘wernor d‘bpfécr?ave q g

€ qriginal of this document

U toits for tightness 05 /09 ,, 2, kK e :
{Wéar’in bushes A _
1. L I ‘ _"’ ‘
N ( . . "
% O
B LR :




Page 29

© ©  Ihave seen the original of this document
' 05/09/2011 FMH

CHASSIS AND CHASSIS MOUNTED. | PASS. [FAIL | DEFECTS/COMMENTS
| COMPONENTS Cont.....ccooece | |
| Shock absorbers condition ~
‘Brake fluid lavellleaks ‘ 1
:SeNofbmké.pipéslc'abies‘conditbﬁ‘A 2
, Brake linings pads.and discs.condttion " 1
TFaeTmrppes eakeand cordlion /’ — ;
[Wiring Gondition and securlty 7T
f@%ust*plpe’i&bxésoondmon and secunity _ /
’ tChaﬁsis-daEnagelconosion ‘ / T
[ WHEELS AND TYRES - :
‘;':\Ahie'el:rims-crad(sldam_agelcorrosion / ':
4%:::;@@@! typeipressure/damagel/iread /1 |
TUGHTSAND ELECTRICS | | 1
Batlery and cradle-clean and secure ‘//’ ] )
[Electrotyte leve! ‘ / “
AT Tights workinglcarrect bulbs T
» Meter working accurately (3 rates) ’
[Opetetion.of foct and hand brakes ' /; - }: -
[ Cittch for excess traveilsiipfudder 7 >_'
“Steering Tor oisalstifnessires playlsel T
centrehvheel imbalante .
Suspension for nolselride/handling e i
i wﬁOpera'tion-of speedolgaugeslw,aml‘ng;- / :
| -Signature of persen carrying outInspegtion \ -
,,




Page 30

[[am e - =
, l have seen %he ongmal of this dacx_mem
; - - : 2>, ”A; - ...'..:.. ' Nty = - “"»‘“:"‘j‘fj: - ‘&‘ .(C rd l ‘ANH - o _‘-‘v 47. S
{ Tona rotased, by rew'ka per WM@ = etk oo
' * Validation [ o ' o
neg.muon Markl M6 NCD j c:arader: | 7  Make. MERCEDES e
B Presse i — Modoe  S376 COY LIMOUSINE A =2
1 Nevr, Keepar's | SEesyaL _LN{““A S fr—— ]
! namo and addtess 1 g=‘ .1:
: Dottt 550935005 $5=§
) WhGsIs 9 AXLE-RIGID BODY =%
! wme dateal - Revoﬂue weight ROSS . - —'?°
,j salofanaler ho:o ASEMESISL U Tt I LTINSy eyinaiion dlasg :E‘lg;EKLGCGAR 9 . g g
" Dag; Ret.. :No. 392‘38818 1053 1310.08 Typoothel  HEAVY OIL Ee-_za
| Oemerncades 078869530 / 0753 45 Oy go5m Gt - =43
) = a0 GIKM =
1 No, of soats inc. ditvee. 5 ’ t‘=;1‘~
'/'! {
A,
",
/
li Ay
\\‘ s —
. ] 4 ../"
i
\
/ N
. .
[



Page 31

N ,J,A/q.m,; | have seen the original of this dacument
7#85@“«"/%(2011 FiviH

20/o8 /u

o Cdr 4
Vvt
g ME. e f

ye



Page 32

@5/89/2011 ©3:52  B1278427674 PALL SMITH ASSOC . PAGE. Bl

Jonn. Tayior ' ) Paul Smith Associotss
| Tol: 01278 427478
fax: 01__278 427674
NO. o1 Pages: 2 \ “ Date: 05 -Sép?equr 204 .
Your Ret: Not Applicable: . OurReRTAYLSEN/PS

Re: M&tarPolicy « 00001964253

John,

Cover note for Mefcedes. cmcched As Ggyeed | have changed Lerus policy 1o covar
Metcedes ang issued a 14 day covernote on Lexus, 50 both veniclésiare covered unti 19
Sepcember Please.le! me know how you wish {6 procesd belore this-ctafe.

pAUL smrm .

| have seen the ongmizi of tniw« ducumem
O‘i/’QQL?OH FMH



Page 33

95/89/2011 B9:52  B1278427674 PAUL. SMITH ASSOC " A 02

P i emt vewet swmewie sy PR s e aE ¢ s e & r—— - anie m—— e

‘(@ RESHERETUDY. MAKKERSTUDY INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED N E&EWA 0 ? 4 42 7 0
iasmemme " TEMPORARY.COVER NOTE AND' 1 Pioas tutesy piirpoce.tor whith Cover Nok lssues
‘CERTIFICATE OF MOTOR INSURANCE 121 COVER KOTE | /7 | CONTINUATION I 4

mwmumummm.&[lﬂ smmns__cay&Mao“ — .. |FERSWAL
nnmmaw

) s fr 80 puibs of Uw Act &-%3— A GNS::MDSQRW “

Whoe thin Cowed Noth Gipives, UnBSITrEre o0 nid. ¢n WIS Uniesa & pertcemant *-; : ! i

m«m»mwmmmmw Sae, T fucusnicn'ash Kt b m i, ok G
Py [ropssheraar: 943t 74 Rimant 1S eRASERS B LITAIAWEGHY,

Vaving mago 8 prososd for insyrence for.tho vihichs deecrbod bolow tho tagurands is § '_‘Mﬁmh&omo&\'uunmmonmmmmm
oo mamouamm\mauwwmmm&nmommw 'Mammummmmmowbh
01.0h0 2areas Daiow tho newrsney dy Uoh m&mwﬂm ae mgumrm hmmhmuncnadu

; 3R R bﬁ'\ﬁ ’4\ ;:

vaunsolmmsm&dubsu

Sia, UM#?:WF;‘I D\.yunrm\..,a

o
&
ot

thew«. e
€ Mo DL

{12, 0/00 70m0 2w o s | t

e e A e A R o bt 22 34

——

e g
WU'O! Nd > m_

MmmWmenwmmw uﬂmmmmumu

e l!lll‘Iﬂlllhllllﬂ‘llllﬂull'1

l‘i have seen the or iQ:iin;al’ of this document
05/09/2011 FMH . -»



Page 34

i have seen the-original of this-¢ omment
05109;‘26‘11 FMH

Gloucester City Cotnet)
Herbart Warehause

Tha Dacks
Bloussstar
GL1 2E0

VAT ‘Reg GB 276 1158 83

Reteipt na; 0485308833692619
e 05-08-11  12:34:05 e

e i o 6 2 2 Y it e 8 e O

1exi Licepalng ;

‘Naga: salwyn taylor
Bedas Na.: ~ 188plw
’Fund Payzent: £189.50
Anount, Pald In: £160.00
{Gmge Qiven: £6.50
Mt PW"Gnt §183.80
Peycint Methad:  Cash *

[ g

=
YA



Page 35

From: Andy Cars [mailto:andycarsgloucester@yahoo.co.uk] ES21122
Sent: 04 October 2011 15:21 ENDIX D
To: Anthony David Moseley Gk

Subject: Mercedes S320 cdi private hire licence application.

Dear Sir/Madam

I would like you to consider the application I have made to licence my Mercedes S Class (Long
Wheelbase) for use as a Chauffeur car.

This vehicle is in excellent condition and cost in excess of £55,000.00 back in 2005.

Many of our top clients request vehicles of this calibre, but due to the cost of these vehicles
new, we have to buy used vehicles in the best condition.

Many of our clients have and do include the likes of Lord Coe, Baroness Fritchie, TV
presenters and many other celebrities.

This vehicle is available for inspection at anytime.

I trust you will look on this application favourably.

Kindest regards

John Taylor

Andy Cars

64 Eastgate Street
Gloucester

GL1 1QN

01452 523000



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37 Agenda ltem 9

Gloucester City Council

COMMITTEE : LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT
DATE : 18™ OCTOBER 2011
SUBJECT : STREET TRADING APPEAL — HOT FOOD UNIT

CEMETERY ROAD, GLOUCESTER

DECISION TYPE D -
WARD : MATSON & ROBINSWOOD

REPORT BY : REGENERATION GROUP MANAGER -
SERVICES, FACILITIES AND SUPPORT

NO. OF APPENDICES : A- APPLICATION AND PHOTOGRAPHS
B — STREET TRADING CRITERIA

REFERENCE NO. : PT181011A

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider an appeal from Mr McCormick regarding refusal of street trading
consent against agreed criteria.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 Members are recommended to resolve:-

A. To dismiss the appeal STAPP31 (Mr.McCormick) and uphold the reasons for
refusal of street trading consent namely:

1) It is considered that the siting of the unit in a residential area will increase
problems with noise, smell, litter and an increase in traffic.

2) The proposed offer is not compatible with the character of the area in which it
is proposed to be situated and neither enhances the area or adds vitality.

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 The Council adopted a new policy and process for Street Trading Applications in
April 2009. A key driver to the policy change was the recognition that, if properly
co-ordinated and controlled, street activity can provide significant benefits in terms
of colour, vitality and life to the streets.

3.2 The new policy introduced two new areas, that of an agreed Street Trading Criteria
(Appendix B) and a consultation programme.

3.3 The policy has been in place for 2 years and in that time there have been significant
improvements to the street trading activity both in the city centre and in the
surrounding area.



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Page 38

STREET TRADING APPEAL- STAPP31 (MR McCORMICK)

A street trading application was received on 12" August 2011 for a hot food unit in
Cemetery Road, operational Monday to Thursday between 7am until 12 pm Fridays
7am until 2 am and Saturdays between 12 noon and 2 am (Appendix A)

Julie Wells (Group Manager — Regeneration) contacted Mr McCormick to advise
that a previous application in this location had been refused due to the number of
objections from local residents regarding noise, litter, traffic and concerns about
anti- social behaviour.

Mr McCormick acknowledged those concerns and requested that his application be
amended to allow operation between the hours of 7am until 1pm from Monday to
Saturday.

Consultation was carried out as outlined in the policy with the following:

Gloucestershire Constabulary
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue
Gloucestershire County Highways
Cabinet Member

Ward Councillors

Cemetery Road Residents.

Five objections were received to the application, details of which are as follow:

Resident A — A catering unit is not appropriate in proximity to the cemetery. An
express shop is already available at the garage opposite. A catering unit already
operates in the lay by opposite Homebase. Traffic and parking difficulties already
exist in Cemetery Road. A catering unit may worsen the position.

Resident B — We feel that having a breakfast/lunch van will add to the congestion
on Cemetery Road and that road is not wide enough to support a parked van. This
application will encourage lorries to park up too! For these reasons we would
decline this application.

Resident C — | would like to register my strong objections against this mobile food
vendor being place in the above mentioned road.

As before, the road is currently a dumping ground for rubbish with people parking
up to eat takeaways which are then dumped out of the windows along with other
bags of rubbish that people throw out of the windows as they drive by. This has
caused rats and mice to be seen frequently in the area which is unsanitary. With a
mobile food takeaway unit placed in the area | fear this will increase tenfold. There
is also the issue of smell that will come from ‘said’ van which | don’t think as
residents we should have to put up with.

| also do not think there will be much need for such a ‘business’ here as we already
have a McDonalds/Tesco nearby that sell breakfasts. There is another issue with
the road getting more traffic which is definitely not needed as it is a ‘rat run’ already



Page 39

with people speeding along the 20mph zone as a cut through, it can be extremely
dangerous during school times as it is. Plus the added factor that the van is an
eyesore.

| would urge you to send a member of the planning department down to Cemetery
Road to see the rubbish that is already covering the area and ask you to reject this
proposal.

Resident D — please can | register my strongest possible opposition to this
application for the reasons below:

There is already a similar mobile catering unit less than half a mile away on the A38
Eastern Avenue on the industrial estate and is situated next to Screwfix, a more
appropriate place for a mobile unit of this type | believe. Most footfall due to
tradesmen using these units early in the morning.

The application is in the middle of a residential area and is surrounded by and
overlooked by houses. Thus it will be an eyesore and could result in more traffic in
a small area that is not built to cope with it. We already have an issue with parking
in this street, sometimes not being able to park outside your own property, which
causes frustration and from a personal point of view | believe that having this unit in
Cemetery Road will only add to this, increased traffic and increased vehicles trying
to park. Cemetery Road is too small and too narrow.

| do not think that a unit of this type is acceptable in a residential area and will
impact adversely on the residents quality of life.

Unfortunately, as we do see in other areas, a unit of this type will automatically
attract groups to hang around the area, potentially resulting in disorder and certainly
an amount of rubbish. Why should local residents, most of whom are elderly, have
to endure this, when we already have an issue with people seemingly thinking it ok
to dump rubbish near the wall next to the car wash?

Personally | find the idea of a mobile catering unit adjacent to a cemetery as
incredibly distasteful and disrespectful to the cemetery itself and also the cause of
distress to visitors to the cemetery. Paying respect to ones loved ones should not
be done surrounded by both rubbish and the smell of fast food.

Resident E — | object on the following grounds.

We already suffer from people using Cemetery Road as a rat run bypassing the
roundabout. | am sick to the back teeth of having my car damaged and the
associated costs. This damage happens late at night either by yobs for drunken
people. | do not want more people transiting this road which | am positive would
result in even more damage.

Idiot car drivers speed down this road, they do not obey the limits and because of
this it is noisy. Put a burger van in the road and there will be more cars coming
down the road, hence more noise.



4.6

4.7

5.0

5.1

Page 40

| am also sick of constantly picking up litter, even though there is a litter picker.
People will come to this road and dump rubbish near the wall and in the Summer
youths gather in the corner of the cemetery and dump beer cans and other rubbish.

The bottom line is that the van will result in more rubbish and cars in the road. | do
not want it here, sorry to be a NIMBY but my concerns are justified, you don’t have
to live here, | do.

Gloucestershire Constabulary commented:- There may be issues with parking if
the van is positioned at the residential end of Cemetery Road, however if the van is
situated at the end of the road closest to the Cemetery itself, we do not foresee any
traffic related issues.

Paul James commented: - that the unit would have to be sited sensitively in relation
to the Cemetery.

Councillor Smith had no objections.
No other responses were received.

| considered the proposal against the agreed criteria and resulting consultation.
The application was refused for the following reasons:

1) It is considered that the siting of the unit in a residential area will increase
problems with noise, smell, litter and an increase in traffic.

2) The proposed offer is not compatible with the character of the area in which it is
proposed to be situated and neither enhances the area or adds vitality.

Mr McCormick was informed of this decision on 16" September 2011.

APPEAL DETAILS
The following appeal was received by email on 20" September 2011

Firstly | would like to thank you very much for all your help and assistance
throughout this process.

As you will already know, the side road with which | wish to place my unit is already
an official Highways designated parking area for workers from all trades and
backgrounds to safely take a driving break. This established parking area is often
used as it is a vital link road with safe access to enter and exit.

Please allow me to address the reasons for refusal.
Reason 1 — Noise, Smell, Litter and an increase in traffic.
The equipment to run the trailer would be what is called ‘a silent running generator’

and they are incredibly quiet, even stood next to one, the narrow boat users are
asked to use them so as not to cause nuisance to neighbouring moored vessels.



Page 41

Litter, 99% of my customers would be commuters and not pedestrian. | would
stress to my customers if eating outside while stretching their legs to use the closed
lid waste bin provided.

Smell, freshly prepared food rarely produces a smell. One only possible cause can
simply be onion and this would not be sold. My aim is to produce a high quality
service offering fresh food and beverage.

Compatibility, the Council has already designated the area a resting/parking area
prior to my application. | would be very happy to meet with the council and
residents to discuss the smallest possible catering unit considered safe to work in
and colour.

| would be, at my best guess, at least 70 metres from the first house in that terrace
if not more, | would ask my customers to exit Cemetery Road via Eastern Avenue
and not past the homes, which as a driver entering back on Eastern Avenue is far
easier.

The hours | wish to operate are 7.30 to 13.30 interfere with nobody’s quality of life,
for the residents of Cemetery Road, | took a walk along the terrace and | would not
be seen, heard and certainly not smelt.

Less than 10 metres from all of the residents in that bottom terrace, permission has
been granted to operate a hand car wash, this will | assume be open for
approximately 12 hours per day operating multiple vacuum cleaners (industrial) and
jet washers (industrial). For those of you in the committee that have used these
type of facilities you will agree are extremely noisy sites.

One of your criteria states that the trader shall provide a service which is of benefit
to the public and brings new products to the area. | propose a unit with agreed
colouring, i.e. cream or other chosen scheme, a size to be in keeping and freshly
prepared food and beverage in an area that would benefit the people who stop
there for a short period to rest and refill themselves with food and beverage.

Ladies and Gentlemen of the committee, | am prepared to fund the purchase of a
unit that satisfies all concerns, please allow me the opportunity to provide a
valuable service at no detrimental cost to anyone.

Throughout Gloucester City and its suburbs there are many many sandwich shops
issued licences, situated on roads providing no safe parking whatsoever and with
residential properties completely surrounding the property and above. | do not have
the skills to word and submit the application they are obviously successfully putting
to yourselves, however | am offering the same professional service in an area
impacting on no-one, serving those in need and the with care and consideration of
its distant residents.

Please allow me this license application and the opportunity to interact and
communicate with those concerned residents to find a unit and menu that pleases.

Thank you all for your time.



Page 42

6. APPEAL RESPONSE

6.1  Confirmation has been sought regarding the statement that the area in question is a
designated lay by. Glenn Dooley, Highways Area Programme Manager at
Gloucestershire County Council commented:-

, ‘The access road is not signed in any way as a rest area and looking at the access
In and out it hasn’t really been designed for large turning movements. | would
therefore reply that this is not a designated rest area and we would not want to sign
it as such.’

6.2 Assuming therefore that this is an unofficial rest area that does not mean that it
needs a food unit placed there to service it. There are several other units in close
proximity where food and drinks can be purchased.

6.3  Whilst | appreciate Mr McCormick’s desire to start a business and his willingness to
engage with the residents regarding the unit and menu, | do not believe this
outweighs the very genuine concerns raised by the Residents.

6.4 There are a significant number of objections to the application from people who
actually live in the area and who already have to deal with noise, traffic and litter.
Whilst | note Mr McCormick will make every possible effort to keep any further
disruption to a minimum it has to be recognised that there is still likely to be an
impact due to the unit trading at this point.

The committee is recommended to dismiss the appeal and uphold the reasons for refusal.

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 Street trading is regulated under Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982

8.2 The criteria that has been imposed by the Council to determine Applications, needs
to comply with both the Act and the EU Services Directive

Background Papers

Published Papers

Person to Contact : Julie Wells
Tel: 396363
E-mail: Juliew@gloucester.gov.uk




OO GLOUCESTER

_Cf?":v"’ COURNC

APPL}CATiON FOR STREE'fI' TRADING CONSENT

I/'We HEREBY MAKE APPLICATION to Gloucester City Council for
consent to trade in streets designated “Consent Streets” by resolution of
the City Council in® accordance with paragraph 2 of Schedule 4 of the Local
Government (M|scellaneous Provnsmns) Act 1982.

1. FULL NAME & ADDRESS OF: APPLICANT

In case of a limited liability company the name of the company
and its registered office mustbe given, together with an
address for correspondence if dlfferent

[

Telephone Number Home u C

2. CONTACT DETAILS Telephone Number Mobile | C

Email Address L B

I

3. DATE OF BIRTH oc\oywl 63

A b o\
4. DESCRIPTION OF GOODS/SERVICES TO BESUPPLIED | Wt -+ Cowd FombDS u}}‘ﬂ'& s JO
i 2

5. DESCRIPTION OF VEHICLE OR STALL [}0=6 PMoBivs
(REGISTRATION NUMBER WHERE APPLICABLE) | chteri G QT
Please provide a photograph of the stall/unit.

6. MOBILE OR STATIC TRADER? _; Maiwe

7. LOCATION FOR WHICH GONSENT IS REQUIRED, ] Cemeved RomD

Please clearly describe the exact location (N.B a separate | ND(;DQ_(MQ .S ] iNSHDE
application is required for each named site. onM QR TR ¢ i

|
8.PROPOSED DAYS AND TIMES YOU INTEND TO TRADE ’\ P - }
3 [
Monday | ) am unti \2 pm |
Tuesday | 7 a.m until {2 p.m i
Wednesday ~1 am unti V2 pmo
Thursday | ~7 a.m until v2 bm
Friday | ~7 am until - A Ui
) Saturday \'2 a.m until Zapan 2 -
[ Sunday a.m until p.m

| NB. Any variation to consented dates/times of trading will
require written approval before trading takes place.

f@& (7 p

i “"?f v@!‘lj




cTees s e s s s oPagedd — oo e e e e

9. FEES

TO BE PAID MONTHLY IN ADVANCE. INITIAL
PAYMENT REQUIRED ON CONSENT, FURTHER
PAYMENTS ON ISSUE OF INVOICE OR DIRECT
DEBIT — PLEASE INDICATE YOUR PREFERENCE.

S

INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF YOUR APPLICATION:-

ACCEPTANCE: | confirm that | have read the attached Street Trading Terms and Conditions and agree to
the terms if consent is awarde
Signature of Applicant............ &ate\ @ E %[‘L

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, arid to this end may use the
information you provided on this form within this authority for the prevention and detectron of fraud. It may
also share this information with other bodles admintstermg pubhc funds soleiy for these purposes

: Retum this form to
“Julie Wells, ~
Regeneratlon e
Gloucester City Councllf_
Herbert Warehousa :
- The Docks : :
Gloucester GL1 2EQ







Page 46



oo s s Paged e ey

}

APPENDIX B

Criteria for Determining Street Trading Consent Applications in the City of
Gloucsster

» Each application will be judged on Its own merits

» The number of traders in any one street will be limited so as nof to cause
undue concentration.

» The siting and operation of any trader shall be such that it does nof cause any
problems of highway safety, obstructlon to users of the highway, obstruction
to important sight-lines for CCTV cameras, unreasonable obstruction of the
visibility of neighbouring businesses, or conflict with the requirements of
emergency vehicles.

'« Locatlons for uses with particular needs (such as water or electricity supply)
will only be considered where these supplies can be safely and conveniently
provided.

. The use shall be compatible with the character of the area In which it is
proposed to be situated.

o The proposed use shall be compatible with any other nearby traders and
businesses. If shall not be in direct competition, in terms of goods primarily
sold, with nearby shops, restaurants or hot food take-aways (Note: nearby
businesses and trader may be consulted on application)

» The trader shall provids a service, which is of benefit to the public and which
enhances the area, by bringing in new products or adding.to the vitality of the

area/shopping centre.

e .The appearance and use of the Street Trading Unit including associated
equipment or structures shall be of a good quality and complementary to the
ambience and vitality of the locality. The precise appearance of the facility
will need to be identified before consent is granted. (For the sake of clarity, it
is acknowledged that ‘good quality’ is a subjective judgement, but it will
include reference to quality and condition of the stall, product and staff, both
in their attire and demeanour, and will be applied at both the inception of the
consent and continue during operation.)

e ~Uses involving the sale of food and noise ‘emission shall meet the
requirements- of Environmental Health and these will need to be Identified
before consent is given. ‘

e Uses that are likely to cause problems of noiss, smell, litter or late night
disturbance especially in residential areas will not be glven consent.

« Consent/renewals will not be considered for any trader in arrears with fees
until such arrears are paid in full.

e Prior to the issue of any consent the trading unit and associated equipment
may, be inspected by an officer authorised by the Council to ensure that the
unit adheres to all relevant and legal conditions.




L o A< s SO

Compliance of Street Trading activity with Legislation

k The Street Trading activity shall, et all times and in all respects, comply with
legal requirements relating to that type of activity, including but not restricted
to the following:

Food Safety Act 1990

Hsalth & Safety at Work Act 1974 and any regulations made under this act.
Environmental Protection Act 1990

Trading Standards Legislation

Regulatfon (EC) No. 852/2004 on the Hygiene of Food Stuffs.

The General Food Law Regulation (EC) 178/2002

The General Food Regulations 2004 (as amended)

The Licensing Act 2003

The Health Act 2006 (Smoke Free prem/ses provisions)

The Food Hygiene (England) requlations 2006




Page 43 Agenda ltem 10

Gloucester City Council

Committee : GLT
LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT
CABINET BRIEFING FOR INFORMATION
Date : 4" OCTOBER 2011
18™ OCTOBER 2011
26" OCTOBER 2011
Subject : TYPES OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES
Decision Type : BUDGET POLICY FRAMEWORK
Ward : ALL
Report By - GILL RAGON, GROUP MANAGER OF
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND REGULATORY
SERVICES
No. Of Appendices - APPENDIX A - PHOTOGRAPH OF A PEDICAB
APPENDIX B — CURRENT HACKNEY CARRIAGE
CONDITIONS
APPENDIX C — HACKNEY CARRIAGE BYELAWS
Reference No. : ES21121

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 A request has been received from a member of the public to consider licensing
Pedicabs (sometimes known as rickshaws), as hackney carriage vehicles in
Gloucester City. Members are requested to consider the practical consequences
regarding the use of this type of vehicle as a hackney carriage in the district.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee agree in principle to considering the licensing of Pedicabs in
Gloucester City and agree to devote resources into developing a policy for the use
of Pedicabs as hackney carriage vehicles in Gloucester City if an appropriate and
legally viable approach can be found.

OR

2.2 The Committee recognise that licensing Pedicabs in Gloucester City is not
appropriate at this time.

3.0 Background

3.1 Pedicabs (sometimes referred to as cycle rickshaws) are pedal-powered cycles
(typically with three or four wheels) used for the purpose of carrying fare-paying
passengers. Within this country they are a relatively new form of public transport
and prominently feature in the London street scene. Outside London such vehicles
are classified as hackney carriages. Within London different laws apply and they
are not licensed as hackney carriages, no formal regulations are in place to regulate
this mode of transport outside of London. A photograph of a Pedicab is attached at
Appendix A.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Page 50

Definitions:

Section 38 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 explains the definition of a
Hackney Carriage “Every wheeled carriage, whatever may be its form or
construction, used in standing or plying for hire in any street within the prescribed
distance”. A Pedicab is a small three-wheeled vehicle having a seat, pedals, and
handlebars in front for the operator and a usually hooded cab in back for
passengers and is therefore included in this definition.

The Council therefore has the discretion under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847
and the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to license Pedicabs
as hackney carriages. Furthermore the 1976 Act permits the Council to impose
conditions on the grant of a hackney carriage vehicle licence.

It is not lawful to licence these Pedicab vehicles as private hire vehicles because
the legal definition of a private hire vehicle commences with “A motor vehicle...”.

The power to license Pedicabs as hackney carriages was clarified in the Court of
Appeal (R v Cambridge City Council ex parte Lane — 13 July 1998) where they
determined that rickshaws/Pedicabs are licensable not as omnibuses but as
hackney carriages. As such a Pedicab falls within the definition of a hackney
carriage vehicle under Section 38 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, and so are
licensable in the same way as motor vehicle hackney carriages.

Section 47 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides
that: -

a) A District Council may attach to the grant of a Hackney Carriage under the Act
of 1847 such conditions, as the District Council may consider reasonably
necessary.

b) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing Subsection, a District
Council may require any Hackney Carriage licensed by them, under the Act
of 1847, to be of such design or appearance or bear such distinguishing
marks as shall clearly identify it as a Hackney Carriage.

c) Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to such a licence may
appeal to a Magistrates Court.

Other District Councils outside London have licensed Pedicabs as hackney
carriages but many schemes have failed through lack of use. Apparently the
Pedicab operators quickly went out of business, with the work being somewhat
seasonal. Schemes in Cambridge, Oxfordshire and York have either not been
approved or subsequently abandoned due to lack of use. North Norfolk, East
Lindsey, and Herefordshire Councils appear to have successfully licensed Pedicabs
as hackney carriages.

The Council has a strict policy regarding the type and specification of vehicles,
which may be licensed as hackney carriage vehicles. The Council’'s current
standard conditions for licensing hackney carriage vehicles and drivers are set out
in Appendix B and a Copy of our Hackney Carriage Byelaws can be seen in
Appendix C. A Pedicab does not meet our current specifications. If Pedicabs are
approved as hackney carriages Members would need to consider developing and
adopting specific vehicle conditions for Pedicabs to operate in Gloucester City.



3.9

3.10

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 51

Legally the Council can change from its current policy if it feels that there are
sufficient reasons to do so, to consider the licensing of other types of Hackney
Carriage Vehicles. The final decision on this matter would be referred to Full
Council in accordance with the City Council Constitution.

A Private Member submitted a Pedicab Bill to Parliament on 18 January 2010. This
was the First Reading and there was no debate on the Bill at this stage, however, it
is not expected that this Bill will make any further progress. The Bill would have
made provision for the control of Pedicabs, defined in the Bill as a 'cycle
constructed or adapted to seat one or more passengers, for the purpose of carrying
passengers in the course of a business'. The Bill's provisions would include
licensing and registration of Pedicabs, the maximum number of passengers to be
carried, reporting of accidents and display of advertisements.

Progress

A request has been received from a Member of the public seeking to set up a
Pedicab business in Gloucester City Spring/Summer 2012. The applicant has been
advised that we currently have no such policy for licensing these types of vehicles in
the City, but that we will seek a Member decision on whether or not we want to
license them as an alternative mode of transport that is more environmentally
friendly and could be a visitor attraction. The Pedicab vehicle is available for
inspection by Members during the Committee meeting.

Each application would need to be determined on its own merits and consideration
would need be given to whether or not each Pedicab is an appropriate form of
transport to be licensed as a hackney carriage in Gloucester City. However, there
are also a number of other issues which will need to be considered should Members
be minded to approve the licensing of Pedicabs:

Safety (structurally and mechanically safe)

Fares (metered fare or fixed fare)

Routes/Areas of Operation (Designated area or at operators discretion)
Riders obligations (Medical fitness, proof of cycling skills)

Ranks (shared or specially designated)

Equalities Act 2010

2Bl NS

If Members agree that Officers devote resources to setting out a policy for Licensing

Pedicabs. Further legal clarification will need to found on the following matters:

1. Whether the legislative framework can allow for the setting of separate fares for
different types of Hackney Carriages.

2. The ability to restrict routes or pre-approve any Pedicab routes of operation
when hackney carriages can stand or ply for hire anywhere within prescribed
area.

3. The use of existing/Provision of new Taxi Ranks by Pedicabs.

4. Obligations on hackney carriage drivers not to refuse a fare or journey from the
licensed district.

5. The need to review Traffic Orders in the City to accommodate Pedicabs.

Equalities Act 2010

Pedicabs cannot meet our licensing criteria in respect of wheelchair access, and if
licensed contributes to the overall number of Hackney Carriages licensed. If we

3



4.5

4.6

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Page 52

licensed a large number of them it will reduce the percentage of wheelchair
accessible vehicles that we have in our fleet. Pedicabs would not be exempt
vehicles under the Equalities Act 2010.

There is a small risk that many other operators may also look to set up a Pedicab
business in Gloucester. There is, therefore, the chance that the authority could be
inundated with applications for Pedicab Licences similar to the congestion seen in
London. If the Council wanted to limit the number of licences issued to Pedicabs the
limit would need to apply to the entire fleet of hackney carriage vehicles.

The cost of conducting research into this topic would need to be recovered through
the hackney carriage licensing fees. We can impose the total costs of Pedicab work
against the Pedicab Licences alone, but this would mean the licence fees for
Pedicabs would be significantly high to begin with. Alternatively we could spread
this cost over a number of years (say 2-3 years). There is however, a risk that if the
Pedicab business is not successful there could be a cost to the Council that is not
recovered.

Future Work

If Committee are minded to consider the licensing of Pedicabs in Gloucester City
and approve recommendation 2.1. Officers will submit a further report in due course
outlining:

. Specific licence conditions for Pedicabs to be approved in Gloucester.

o Proposed fares for Pedicabs be set, possibly at a single maximum fare per
each half hour (or part thereof) for each vehicle hiring (not per passenger).

o Proposed guidelines for consideration on approving applications for Pedicabs
shall be the produced to be approved by the Licensing and Enforcement
Committee.

o Delegation of functions in determining Pedicab Licence applications and
make arrangements for the constitution to be updated accordingly.

. We will later request Member’s consideration on whether there is any need to
provide separate taxi rank provision for Pedicabs within the City.

o Liaison with Gloucestershire Highways on any amendments needed to Traffic
Orders in the City.

. Details of any restrictions on routes of operation within the City.

o If Members are minded to consider Licensing these vehicles because they

encourage the use of environmentally friendly modes of transport, Members
should also consider whether it is appropriate to consider licensing Horse
and Carts in Gloucester City too.

Conclusions

Gloucester could significantly benefit from a successful Pedicab service. They have
the potential to be an asset to the city and an additional attraction to visitors to the
city. They would provide an environmentally friendly mode of transport with no
pollution. Pedicabs would provide a useful short distance service ferrying tourists,
and indeed residents, between various tourist attractions, restaurants and hotels.



6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.0

8.1

8.2

Page 53

Officers are acutely aware of the problems that Pedicabs can potentially bring to the
streets of Gloucester, whether it is blocking access to tourist attractions, holding up
traffic, use of bus lanes or the lack of suitable ranks, but do not think the licensing of
Pedicabs should be disregarded outright.

There are considerable hurdles to overcome if Pedicabs are to be licensed in
Gloucester City. Perhaps the most significant being the Council’s current policy on
Hackney Carriage Vehicles and how these vehicles can meet our requirements and
other legislative constraints. The Licensing and Enforcement Committee is being
asked to decide whether they wish officers to devote resources to unravelling that
policy and seeking to overcome these problems, or whether it should be recognised
that licensing Pedicabs in Gloucester City is not appropriate at this time.

Financial Implications

Financial Implications will vary dependant on the decision made by Member s of the
Licensing and Enforcement Committee.

Taxi Licensing is funded from the fees obtained from licence holders. Legislation
requires that the fees set are reasonable to recover the cost of providing that
service. Any consultation work required would be met through the current licensing
budgets. The cost of issuing any licences would be met through the allocated fees.

Fees would need to be set in line with the European Services Directive: Guidance
for Local Authorities and LACORS Guidance on the impact of the Services Directive
on Councils setting and administering local licence fees within the service sector.

There could be legal costs and officer time arising out of any appeal against refusal
to grant a hackney carriage licence or where there is an appeal against the vehicle
conditions.

Legal Implications

The Council has the discretion under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to license Pedicabs as
hackney carriages. Furthermore the 1976 Act permits the Council to impose
conditions on the grant of a hackney carriage vehicle licence. This power to license
Pedicabs as hackney carriages was clarified in the Court of Appeal (R v Cambridge
City Council ex parte Lane — 13 July 1998). As such a Pedicab falls within the
definition of a hackney carriage vehicle under Section 38 of the Town Police
Clauses Act 1847.

Full Legal implications are not available at this stage but would be provided if a
decision has been made in principle to allocate resources into setting out a policy
for licensing Pedicabs as Hackney Carriages in the City. Expert advice may be
needed as the regulation of Pedicabs is unclear at this point of time.



9.0

9.1

10.0

11.0

11.1

11.2

Background Papers

Page 54

Risk Management Implications (Authors to complete) Identify all key risks
(scoring 8 and above) for the recommendation including the impact and likelihood of
the risk occurring and what measures will be taken to mitigate the risk.

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy any decisions made
which are unreasonable or unlawful could be open to legal challenge resulting in
loss of image, reputation and potential financial penalty.

People Impact Assessment (PIA):
Please ensure you complete this section even if a PIA is not required.

Is a PIA required? Yes | No | Explanation: At this stage there is
X | insufficient information to determine
whether a PIA is required
Has an initial PIA screening | Yes | No | Explanation: An Initial screening shall
been completed? X |be carried out, once a policy is
formulated.
Has a full PIA been Yes | No | Explanation: If a policy is later
completed? X formulated, and initial screening
determines a need for a full PIA, it will
be conducted then
Is the PIA available? Yes | No | Explanation:
X
Has the PIA identified any | Yes* | No

negative impacts on any
protected characteristic or
community cohesion?

*Please ensure PIA is available

Any Further Relevant Information:

None

Other Corporate

Implications (this

Environmental, Staffing, Trade Union)

may include Community Safety,

To increase the use of public and other environmentally friendly modes of transport.

To ensure that members of the public are transported safely in appropriately
licensed vehicles driven by identified licensed drivers.

Hackney Carriage Rule Book (as amended June 2010)

Hackney Carriage Byelaws

Published Papers None
Person to Contact Lisa Wilkes
Tel: 396047

E-mail: lisa.wilkes@gloucester.gov.uk




Page 55
Images of Pedicabs Appendix A




Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2
1.3

1.4

1.5

Page 57

Gloucester City Council Hackney Carriage Rule book

Drivers Licences

New Applications

The applicant must have been the holder of a valid driving licence (NOT being a provisional
licence) authorising him/her to drive a motor car in the UK for at least 12 months immediately prior
to the date of application.

The applicant must be 18 years of age or over.

An application will not be granted unless the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the applicant is a
fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage licence.

To make an application, the applicant must:

a

b

complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate application form
pay the appropriate fee
provide 2 identical passport size photos as follows:

. 45 x 35mm in size

e Be taken against a light background so that the applicants features are distinguishable
and contrast against the background

e Show the full face, uncovered, without sunglasses. Head coverings are NOT allowed
unless due to religious beliefs

produce for examination a current valid driving licence, authorising him/her to drive a motor
vehicle in the UK, showing his/her current home address

complete and submit a consent form for release of information held by DVLA to the Licensing
Authority

complete an enhanced criminal record disclosure application form and provide appropriate
identity documentation. Please note that the applicant must visit the Licensing Authority in
person when submitting their enhanced criminal record disclosure application.

provide a satisfactory group 2 medical certificate that is no more than 3 months old on initial
application.

provide evidence of successful completion of a Gloucestershire County Council Road Safety
Unit Driving Assessment that is no more than 3 months old on initial application.

applicant must pass the Hackney Carriage Knowledge Test as set out by the Licensing
Authority.

the licence holder must complete an NVQ level 2 in road passenger transport within 12
months of the licence being granted or a renewal may not be issued.

Applicants are required to notify the Licensing Authority of any convictions, cautions, fixed penalties
or pending court cases during the application process (i.e. the time between the application being
submitted and the licence being granted)



1.6

1.7

1.8

Page 58

Additional Application Requirements for Foreign Nationals and Persons that have
resided outside of the UK

The Licensing Authority must be satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person. In order to
determine this, an applicant who is a foreign national or has resided outside of the UK must also do
the following:

a complete an enhanced criminal record disclosure application form (as detailed in the new
applicant section above). To complete this application, the applicant must provide all
addresses for the past 5 years including any addresses that are outside of the UK. The
enhanced criminal record disclosure will show any convictions that have been committed in
the UK.

b in addition to the enhanced criminal record disclosure application, the applicant must provide
the Licensing Authority with a criminal record check from all countries outside of the UK that
they have resided in from the age of 18 or, if those countries do not provide such information,
a certificate of good conduct from the Embassy or Diplomatic Mission from all countries that
they have resided in from the age of 18. This certificate must be an original and if in a foreign
language must be accompanied by an original certified translation from a sworn translator.
Any costs incurred to obtain such certification must be paid for by the applicant.

the Licensing Authority must be satisfied that the applicant holds an appropriate driving licence to
drive in the UK for vocational purposes (gainful employment).

d an applicant must be eligible to work in the UK and, if appropriate, will need to provide
evidence of this.

Renewal Applications

A renewal application must be completed prior to the expiry date of the Hackney Carriage driver’s
licence. There is no period of grace if a renewal is submitted after the expiry date. It is an offence to
drive a Hackney Carriage without the appropriate Hackney Carriage driver’s licence. Licences can
be renewed up to 14 days before the current expiry date and the new licence will be post dated to
the expiry date.

To make a renewal application, the applicant must:
a complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate renewal application form.
b  pay the appropriate fee.
¢ provide 2 identical passport size photos as follows:
e 45x35mmin size.

e Be taken against a light background so that the applicants features are distinguishable and
contrast against the background.

e Show the full face, uncovered, without sunglasses. Head coverings are NOT allowed
unless due to religious beliefs.

d produce for examination a current valid driving licence, authorising him/her to drive a motor
vehicle in the UK, showing his/her current home address.

e complete and submit a consent form for release of information held by DVLA to the Licensing
Authority.



2.1

22

2.3

24

f

g

Page 59

complete an enhanced criminal record disclosure application form and provide appropriate
identity documentation where appropriate.

provide a satisfactory group 2 medical certificate where appropriate.

Vehicle Licences

New Applications

To make an application the applicant must:

a
b

Cc

f

complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate application form.
pay the appropriate fee.

produce proof of ownership of the vehicle, such as a registration certificate in the applicants
name or, if not available, a bill of sale, an invoice or a credit agreement.

produce an appropriate insurance certificate or cover note for Hackney Carriage purposes in
accordance with the requirements of current legislation. If a cover note is offered, the full
insurance certificate should be presented before the cover note has expired. Failure to do so
will leave the licence open to revocation.

produce a current MOT certificate and advisory notice if applicable (unless the vehicle is less
than 1 year old).

produce a current Licensing Authority vehicle inspection certificate.

Renewal Applications

A renewal application must be completed prior to the expiry date of the Hackney Carriage vehicle
licence. There is no period of grace if a renewal is submitted after the expiry date. It is an offence to
drive a Hackney Carriage without the appropriate Hackney Carriage vehicle licence. Licenses can
be renewed up to 14 days before the current expiry and the new licence will be post dated to the
expiry date.

To make a renewal application the applicant must:

a
b

Cc

e

f

complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate renewal application form.
pay the appropriate fee.

produce proof of ownership of the vehicle, such as a registration certificate in the applicants
name or, if not available, a bill of sale, an invoice or a credit agreement.

produce an appropriate insurance certificate or cover note for Hackney Carriage purposes in
accordance with the requirements of current legislation. If a cover note is offered, the full
insurance certificate should be presented before the cover note has expired. Failure to do so
will leave the licence open to revocation.

produce a current MOT certificate and advisory notice if applicable.

produce a current Licensi‘rllg Authority vehicle inspection certificate.

Transfer of Ownership Applications

To make a transfer application the applicant must:

a

complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate transfer application form.



25

26

e

f

Page 60

pay the appropriate fee.

produce proof of ownership of the vehicle, such as a registration certificate in the applicants
name or, if not available, a bill of sale, an invoice or a credit agreement and a letter from the
previous owner stating that they are no longer using the vehicle as a Hackney Carriage
vehicle.

produce an appropriate insurance certificate or cover note for Hackney Carriage purposes in
accordance with the requirements of current legislation. If a cover note is offered, the full
insurance certificate should be presented before the cover note has expired. Failure to do so
will leave the licence open to revocation.

produce a current MOT certificate and advisory notice if applicable.

produce a current Licensing Authority vehicle inspection certificate.

Change of Vehicle Applications

To make a change of vehicle application the applicant must:

a

f
g

complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate change of vehicle application
form.

pay the appropriate fee.

produce proof of ownership of the vehicle, such as a registration certificate in the applicants
name or, if not available, a bill of sale, an invoice or a credit agreement.

produce an appropriate insurance certificate or cover note for Hackney Carriage purposes in
accordance with the requirements of current legislation. If a cover note is offered, the full
insurance certificate should be presented before the cover note has expired. Failure to do so
will leave the licence open to revocation.

produce a current MOT certificate and advisory notice if applicable (unless the vehicle is less
than 1 year old).

produce a current Licensing Authority vehicle inspection certificate.

return any plates previously issued by the Licensing Authority.

Change of Registration of Vehicle Applications

To make a change of registration application the applicant must:

a

complete and submit to the Licensing Authority the appropriate change of vehicle registration
application form.

pay the appropriate fee.
produce confirmation of change of registration from DVLA.

produce an appropriate insurance certificate or cover note for Hackney Carriage purposes in
accordance with the requirements of current legislation. If a cover note is offered, the full
insurance certificate should be presented before the cover note has expired. Failure to do so
will leave the licence open to revocation.

produce a current MOT certificate showing the new registration.

return any plates previously issued by the Licensing Authority.



3.1

3.2

Page 61

General Conditions
Alteration of Existing Conditions

a The Council may alter these conditions upon the giving of 28 days notice in writing to the
licence holder that any of these conditions are deleted, any new ones inserted or existing
conditions altered.

b  Any alteration of conditions under this condition will be consulted upon in the normal way and
the licence holder will have the right to appeal to the Magistrates Court. The Licensing and
Enforcement Committee will consider conditions, and any comments as a result of the
consultation in the normal way.

Disciplinary Action

A breach of any of these general conditions may result in disciplinary action in accordance with the
Council’s approved enforcement policy and the penalty points totting up procedure.

DRIVERS

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Duration of Licence
Drivers licences shall remain in force for up to 3 years.
Medical Criteria

Once a driver has reached the age of 45, he/she must have a medical every 5 years on renewal of
the drivers licence until he/she reaches the age of 65. From the age of 65 he/she will have a
medical annually.

If a driver develops any health or medical issues that may affect his/her fitness as a driver during
the period of their licence; they must notify the Licensing Authority immediately. Should this mean
that a driver is required to cease driving for a period of time the Licensing Authority must receive
written medical clearance from the drivers GP in order to resume driving.

Requirement to Return Drivers Badge

If a driver is no longer employed as a Hackney Carriage driver, he/she must return his/her licence,
badge and any other related items to the Licensing Authority within 7 days.

Notification of Changes

If a driver moves house or changes his/her name, or if any other personal details included on the
current licence changes, he/she must inform the Licensing Authority in writing within 7 days (see
also 4.4).

If a driver leases a vehicle from another driver, he/she is obliged to inform the Licensing Authority,
as to who owns the vehicle that they are driving and to produce a current insurance certificate
naming both the owner and driver. The Licensing Authority must be notified in writing within 7 days
if anything changes.

Convictions, Cautions and Fixed Penalties

a If a driver receives any cautions, convictions, fixed penalties or has a court case pending,
he/she MUST inform the Licensing Authority in writing within 7 days of being formally notified
of any such charge, summons or conviction, or in the case of a custodial sentence as soon as
reasonably practical.



3.10

3.11

3.12

b

Page 62

Notification of accidents (please see 4.5).

Code of Conduct

A Hackney Carriage driver shall always act in accordance with the following:

a

n

(o]

wear the Hackney Carriage drivers badge provided by the Licensing Authority, in such a
position and manner as to be plainly visible to the customer.

have a clean and tidy appearance.
behave in a polite and courteous manner in front of customers, and to each other.

take reasonable precautions to ensure the comfort and safety of passengers including when
they are getting in and out of the vehicle.

attend punctually at the appointed time and place when hired.
if requested, offer reasonable assistance with the loading and unloading of bags and luggage.

offer reasonable assistance to passengers with a disability when they are getting in and out of
the vehicle and, if appropriate, to and from their starting point or destination. If assistance is
declined then continue to act in a polite and courteous manner.

unless otherwise directed by the hirer, shall proceed to the given destination by the shortest or
most economical route .

not eat or drink in the vehicle whilst working as a Hackney Carriage driver.

comply with a customer’s request not to play any radio or other sound emitting device in the
vehicle, other than for the purpose of sending or receiving messages in connection with the
operation of the vehicle.

not play any radio or other sound producing device in the vehicle so loud that it causes a noise
nuisance to anyone inside or outside of the vehicle.

not carry animals in the vehicle whilst working except for those carried in connection with the
hirer of the vehicle. The driver has the discretion to decide whether he/she wants to carry
animals belonging to a passenger in the vehicle, however, the animal may only be carried in
the rear of the vehicle (see also 4.11).

it is an offence to drive a vehicle whilst using a mobile phone. All Hackney Carriage drivers
who wish to operate a mobile phone must ensure that a suitable means of hands-free
operation is installed in the vehicle.

remain vigilant and comply with local speed limits.

comply with Smokefree Legislation (please see 4.6 and 4.7).

Lost Property

As soon as possible after a passenger has left the vehicle, the driver should check to make sure
that no property has been left behind.

If a passenger does leave something in a vehicle and it is not claimed within 48 hours, the driver
should take it to the Licensing Authority offices or to the local Police Station and get a receipt from
the Duty Officer.



3.13

3.14

3.15
3.16
3.17

3.18

3.19
3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Page 63

ISA

The Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) has been created to help prevent unsuitable people
from working with children and vulnerable adults. They will provide a scheme of registration by
which only applicants that are judged not to pose a risk to children and vulnerable people can be
ISA registered. Once the scheme has been fully rolled out, employers and service providers who
work with children and vulnerable people will only be able to recruit people who are ISA registered.
More information is available at the website www.isa-gov.org.uk

VEHICLES
General

Where a new additional Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence has been issued to allow a wheelchair
accessible vehicle or people carrier to be operated, then that vehicle licence is issued conditional
on:-

a the vehicle always remaining as a wheelchair accessible vehicle or people carrier type; and

b  the vehicle licence not being transferred to a non-wheelchair accessible vehicle or non-people
carrier type.

The vehicle shall be of suitable size, shape and design to be safe and comfortable for passengers.
The vehicle must be right-hand drive and have a minimum of 4 doors.

The vehicle must be constructed and the doors open sufficiently wide as to allow easy access and
egress from the vehicle and cause no inconvenience to passengers.

The licence holder shall ensure that all fittings and seats are such to be efficient, safe, tidy and
clean.

The vehicle must comply with all traffic regulations and legislation in force.

No changes to the specification, design or appearance shall be made to the vehicle without the
prior approval of the Licensing Officer.

Any vehicle that has been modified since manufacture or is imported must have the appropriate
approval certificate e.g. a Single Vehicle Approval Certificate.

Tinted windows will only be accepted if they meet the manufacturers specification and comply with
current legislation.

Vehicle Age and Testing

Vehicles must comply with the following conditions in relation to age and length of service;

a vehicles will not be accepted for licensing on the first occasion after 5 years from the date of
the first registration regardless of whether it was previously licensed anywhere else in the UK,
or re-licensed after 10 years from the date of the first registration.

b  the vehicle shall be removed from service on the 10th anniversary from the date of the first
registration, any outstanding licence shall be transferred onto a new vehicle free of charge for
the remainder of that current licence.

¢  metropolitan type vehicles designed and constructed for the purpose of conveying members of
the public are exempt from condition 3.23(a), subject to confirmation by the Licensing Officer
that at all times their mechanical condition and standard of appearance is satisfactory.



3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

Page 64

d all vehicles must be tested annually to the current Licensing Authority standards. Once the
vehicle has reached the age of 8 years since manufacture, the vehicle shall be tested at 6
monthly intervals until it has reached its service limit of 10 years since manufacture.

e if the condition of the vehicle deteriorates below the acceptable standard set in the Licensing
Authority vehicle test at anytime during the working life of the vehicle, the Licensing Officer
reserves the right to withdraw the licence.

Colour of Vehicle

All Hackney Carriage vehicles shall be white in colour.
Seat Dimensions

Each passenger seat shall be as follows:

a Height — from the top of the seat cushion to the roof at the lowest point must not be less than
30 inches (762mm.)

b  Knee space — the measurement between the front of each seat and the rear of the seat in
front must not be less than 10 inches (254mm.)

¢  Width — the width of each passenger seat from side to side shall not be less than 16 inches
(406mm). A seat designed for more than one passenger such as a rear seat must allow a
width of 16 inches (406mm) for each passenger permitted.

d Depth — the measurement of a seat cushion between the front and back must not be less than
18 inches (457mm).

Occasional use fold down seats in purpose built wheelchair accessible vehicles are exempt from
the seat dimension requirements listed above.

Fire Extinguisher and First Aid Kit

The vehicle licence holder shall ensure that a fire extinguisher is fitted and complies to British
Standard BSEN3 and be of at least 1kg powder capacity and in date. A First Aid Kit must also be
provided in the vehicle and be maintained and readily available for use.

CCTV Systems

CCTV systems may be installed into the vehicle with the approval of the Licensing Officer. All
CCTV systems must comply with current legislation including data protection.

Luggage

All luggage must be stored securely and, if appropriate, the vehicle shall be fitted with suitable
equipment to prevent luggage from entering the passenger compartment.

Roof racks and roof boxes are not permitted on Hackney Carriages without the express prior
approval of the Licensing Officer.

Trailers must be approved by the Licensing Officer.
Seatbelts

Each passenger must have an appropriate, operational 3 point lap and shoulder seatbelt, see also
4.8 and 4.9 which refers to current seatbelt legislation.

Meters and Fares



3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37
3.38

3.39

3.40

3.41

3.42

3.43

3.44

3.45

Page 65

Taxi meters must be inspected annually as part of the Licensing Authority vehicle test, but the
Licensing Officer reserves the right to test on demand.

All Hackney Carriage licence holders shall ensure that the taxi meter is set to the current Licensing
Authority tariff and that the taxi meter is on display within the vehicle in a prominent position and
clearly visible to the hirer of the vehicle.

Fares to be calculated and charged as follows:

a for journeys that wholly take place within the controlled district, the meter shall be running at
no higher than the prescribed rate and the fare charged shall be no more than the fare
showing on the meter. The meter shall not be engaged until the hirer is in the vehicle.

b  for journeys that either wholly or in part take place outside of the controlled district, the fare or
method of calculation shall be agreed with the passenger prior to the commencement of the
journey.

Tariff Card

All Hackney Carriage licence holders shall ensure that the current Licensing Authority tariff card is
on display within the vehicle in a prominent position and clearly visible to the hirer of the vehicle.

Vehicle Licence Plates
Vehicle licences shall remain in force for a period of 1 year.

The exterior Hackney Carriage vehicle plate shall be securely fixed to the outside of the vehicle
adjacent to the rear registration number plate and shall be displayed at all times that the licence is
in force. The plate must be clearly visible at all times.

The interior Hackney Carriage vehicle plate shall be securely fixed inside the vehicle in a position
where it is clearly visible to passengers travelling in the vehicle and shall be displayed at all times
that the licence is in force.

The licence plates shall remain the property of the Licensing Authority and in the event that the
licence is suspended, revoked or expired it shall be returned to the Licensing Authority within 7
days of notice being served on the licence holder by the Licensing Authority.

Roof Signs

Hackney Carriages must be fitted with an approved standardised roof sign as directed by the
Licensing Officer with the exception of metropolitan type vehicles.

The roof sign MUST be displayed on the top of the vehicle showing the word “taxi” whilst working in
its controlled district. The sign must be attached to the meter and must be illuminated when the
vehicle is available for hire.

Door Panels

Hackney Carriages may display on both front doors, the approved recognition panel showing the
words: City of Gloucester, City Crest, Licensed Vehicle Plate Number together with their own
business hame and telephone number if they wish.

Door panels must be a maximum size of 0.61m? (2ft?).
Advertising

Hackney Carriages are permitted to have whole vehicle body advertising livery for a single product
or service subject to the prior approval of the Licensing Officer.



3.46

41
4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

49

4.10

Page 66

Stretched Limousines

Stretched limousines are not permitted to be licensed as Hackney Carriage vehicles.
Other Legislation

Number of Passengers Permitted

A Hackney Carriage shall not be permitted to carry more than 8 passengers.

A Hackney Carriage shall not carry any more passengers than the number stated on the vehicle
licence plate.
Licensed Drivers

A Hackney Carriage is licensed as a Hackney Carriage and as such can only be driven by a person
holding a Hackney Carriage drivers licence issued by the same Licensing Authority throughout the
duration of that Hackney Carriage vehicle licence. Even with all signage removed; the vehicle is still
a licensed vehicle and must not be driven by any other person than a licensed Hackney Carriage
driver.

Change of Details

A holder of a Hackney Carriage vehicle licence must notify the Licensing Authority, in writing within
7 days, of any changes in the details of their Hackney Carriage licence including change of
address.

Notification of Accidents

A holder of a Hackney Carriage vehicle licence must notify the Licensing Authority as soon as
reasonably practicable and no longer than 72 hours after any accident that causes damage
materially affecting the safety, performance or appearance of a Hackney Carriage vehicle or the
comfort and convenience of the passengers.

Smokefree Legislation

Hackney Carriage vehicles are smokefree vehicles by law and neither the driver nor the
passengers are able to smoke in the vehicle at any time. This applies to all occupants including the
driver at all times including for private use.

A No Smoking sign must be displayed in each compartment of the vehicle that shows the
international “No Smoking” sign (a minimum of 70mm in diameter).

Seatbelt Legislation

The driver of a Hackney Carriage is responsible for ensuring that ALL passengers under the age of
14 are wearing the correct seatbelts or restraints.

A Hackney Carriage driver is only exempt from wearing a seatbelt whilst the Hackney Carriage is:
a being used for seeking hire within the Licensing district.

b  answering a call for hire.

¢ carrying fare paying passengers for hire.

Sale of Alcohol

The sale of alcohol is a licensable activity under the Licensing Act 2003. The sale of alcohol is
prohibited in a moving vehicle. If a sale of alcohol is made as part of a booking arrangement, the
sale must be authorised by either a premises licence or a temporary event notice in accordance
with the Licensing Act 2003.



Page 67

Guide Dogs

4.11 A Hackney Carriage driver must permit, without additional payment, guide, hearing and certain
prescribed assistance dogs accompanying disabled people to be carried in the licensed vehicle
unless an exemption certificate has been issued to that driver on medical grounds by the Licensing
Authority.

5. Glossary of Terms

Controlled District

The area covered by the Licensing Authority.
County Council Drivers Assessment

An assessment of an applicant’s driving ability, undertaken by Gloucestershire County Council on behalf
of the Licensing Authority to demonstrate the suitability or otherwise of an applicant to be granted a
Hackney Carriage drivers licence.

DfT
The Department for Transport determines the overall transport strategy for the UK.
DVLA

The Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency is an executive agency of the Department for Transport (DfT).
The DVLA’s primary aims are to facilitate road safety and general law enforcement by maintaining
registers of drivers and vehicles, and to collect vehicle excise duty (car tax).

Enhanced Criminal Record Disclosure

The Criminal Record Bureau (CRB) is an executive agency of the Home Office and provides wide access
to criminal record information through its disclosure service. The enhanced criminal record disclosure
contains details of both spent and unspent convictions and any cautions from England, Wales and
Northern Ireland, held on central records or it will indicate that there are no such matters held on central
records.

In addition the enhanced criminal record disclosure may also show any information held on local Police
records considered by the Chief Constable or Chief Officer to be relevant to the position being sought
and which can be disclosed without harming the interests of the prevention or detection of crime. It is
entirely up to the Chief Constable or Chief Officer to decide what information is disclosed, if any, in
these circumstances.

In respect of an enhanced criminal record disclosure, the Chief Constable or Chief Officer may also
disclose information to the counter signatory only, that is information which will not form part of the actual
disclosure. Such information will be sent separately to the counter signatory and will be withheld from the
subject of the disclosure (that is the individual applicant) in the interests of the prevention or detection of
crime.

Hackney Carriage/Taxi

A Hackney Carriage is also known as a Taxi. It is defined in section 38 of the Town Police Clauses Act
1847 and is a wheeled vehicle constructed or adapted to seat fewer than 8 passengers that can carry



Page 68

passengers for hire and reward and may stand on a taxi rank or ply for hire in any street within the
licensed district.

Taxi Rank/Stand

An approved rank, also known as a stand, within the controlled district where taxis can await the arrival of
a hirer.

ISA

The Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) has been created to help prevent unsuitable people from
working with children and vulnerable adults. They will provide a scheme of registration by which only
applicants that are judged not to pose a risk to children and vulnerable people can be ISA registered.
Once the scheme has been fully rolled out, employers and service providers who work with children and
vulnerable people will only be able to recruit people who are ISA registered. More information is available
at the website. www.isa-gov.org.uk

Knowledge Test

An examination undertaken by applicants for a Hackney Carriage drivers licence to demonstrate the
knowledge an applicant has regarding:

The rules and regulations which a Hackney Carriage driver MUST adhere to and the applicants
good topographical knowledge in relation to the area in which they are applying to be licensed in.

The knowledge test must be passed by Hackney Carriage driver applicants prior to a drivers licence
being granted.

Licensing Authority
The authority responsible for issuing licenses in relation to Hackney Carriage drivers and vehicles under

the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and Part Il of The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976.

Licensing Authority Vehicle Test Certificate

Vehicle tests undertaken by garages within the controlled district that have been approved by the
Licensing Authority. In addition to safety checks this includes condition of the vehicle inside and outside
and that the vehicle meets the Licensing Authority conditions e.g. roof signs, plates etc.

Licensing Officer

An Officer of the Council authorised to act in accordance with Hackney Carriage legislation.

London Type Hackney Carriage

A vehicle that is recognisable by the public as being a purpose built Hackney Carriage such as used by
the London black cabs. Examples include the LTI TX series and the Fairways FX series.

Medical (Group 2)

A medical examination undertaken to group 2 standards set out by DVLA. This is the same as the
standard required from drivers of public service vehicles and heavy goods vehicles.

Premises Licence

A licence issued by a Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 which permits licensable activities
which may include sale by retail of alcohol.



Page 69

Single Vehicle Approval Certificate

The Single Vehicle Approval Certificate (SVA) scheme is a pre-registration inspection for cars and light
goods vehicles that have not been type approved to British or European standards. The main purpose of
the scheme is to ensure that these vehicles have been designed and constructed to modern safety and
environmental standards before they can be used on public roads. The approval is issued by selected
VOSA testing stations and may also be issued to vehicles that have been modified or converted.

Temporary Event Notice

A notice submitted to the Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 in relation to licensable
activities that may include the sale by retail of alcohol. There are restrictions on temporary event notices
including a limit on the number that can be issued per year.

VOSA

The Vehicle and Operator Services Agency (VOSA) provides a range of licensing, testing and
enforcement services with the aim of improving the roadworthiness standards of vehicles ensuring the
compliance of operators and drivers, and supporting the independent Traffic Commissioners.

FACILITIES FOR THE DISABLED

(1 Approved anchorages must be provided for the wheelchair and chairbound disabled person.
These anchorages must be either chassis or floor linked and capable of withstanding approved
dynamic or static tests. Restraints for wheelchair and occupant must be independent of each
other. Anchorages must also be provided for the safe stowage of a wheelchair when not in use,
whether folded or otherwise, if carried within the passenger compartment. All anchorages and
restraints must be so designed that they do not cause any danger to other passengers.

(2) The door and doorway must be so constructed as to permit an unrestricted opening across the
doorway of at least 75cm. The minimum angle of the door when opened must be 90 degrees.

(3) The clear height of the doorway must be not less than 1.2 metres.
(4) Grab handles must be placed at door entrances to assist the elderly and disabled.
(5) The top of the tread for any entrance must be at floor level of the passenger compartment. The

outer edge of the floor at each entrance must be fitted with non-slip treads.

(6) The vertical distance between the highest part of the floor and the roof in the passenger
compartment must be not less than 1.3 metres.

(7) Where seats are placed facing each other, there must be a minimum space of 42.5cm between
any part of the front of a seat and any part of any other seat which faces it, provided adequate
foot room is maintained at floor level. Where all seats are placed facing to the front of the vehicle,
there must be clear space of at least 66¢cm in front of every part of each seat squab.

(8) A ramp or ramps for the loading of a wheelchair and occupant must be available at all times. An
adequate locking device must be fitted to ensure that the ramp/ramps do not slip or tilt when in
use. Provision must be made for the ramps to be stowed safely when not in use.



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71

CITY OF GLOUCESTER

- WITH RESPECTTO

- HACKNEY CARRIAGES

MOTOR VEHICLES LET EOR HiRE




Page 72

BYELAWS'

Made:under section-68 of tfie: Towh Police Clauses Act, 1847 ‘section*171:6f thé Public Health Act,
1875, -and’ section 15 :of -t._h-e:T @lb\uc.es*ter Corporation Act. 1970, by ‘the Mayor ‘Aldarmen ‘and

Citizens of the City'of Gloucester, with respectto hackney carriages and motor veHicias let for hire

in'the City of Gloucester
Interpretation

1;  Throughout. these byélaws? “the-Coungi” means the ayor Alderish ahd Gitizens of the
City of Gloticester acting:by:the Council ariti“ihe district’ means the-City-of Gloucester.

“motor VeHIcle let for- hire” has the same meaiing s i 566t6% 15 of the: (loucester
Corperation Act; 1970:

Provisions egulatiig the manner in which the mumbr of éach hackney carriage.

coifesponding with the number of its licence. shill:be-displayed

2. (@) The propielor of a hackney cartiage shall cause thé ‘numberof the licence granted to,

of the carriage, or-on,plates:provided by the Counciliaffixed tHerets,

{b): A propristor or diiverof.a’hiackney:carriage shall:- °

I not wilflly or negligently céuss: 6r°siffer any:such numiber fo,be coricaaled:from
Public view whiile the:carrlage Isistanding:or. plying f6rhire;: ]

Il ot cause ‘or pstit tHie: Carriage tor stand «or ply“for hire with: ariy isuch palnting,
marking:or. plate so defaced thatiany figure or mateial particular is'illeglble.
Provisions regulating how hackney carriages are to be/furnished or provided
8. The:proprietorof & hackney:carfiage-shall::

(8) provide sufficient frieains by Which :ahy person in the. carriage: may Eommunicate. iwith
the driver; ' , £ _

(b). icause theiroof oricovering'to be Kept water:tight:

(¢)  providerany:necessary windows andia mieans of operiing:and closing:not less thai 6iié
window.on each side; .

{d) cause the'seats tobe:properly cushionéd or:covered:
(8)  cause the floor to'be provided witf-a proper caipst, mat or other suitable coverirg;

) caise tre ftings and ‘furniture: generally’ to be: kept ‘i & clean: condition, well
- mainfained and In every way.fit forpublic servics;
luggage; i 3




®)
0]
0

(k)

0

Page 73

provids an efficiént fire-6xtingisHer whilch shall be-carried i such & pasition as to'be
readily‘avallable-for use; .

provide at Ieast itwo -doors for-the use: of ‘persons. conveyed i Such carriage and ‘a
separate means of ingress and egress for:the:driver; ,

provide:and maintain an electric’light in‘itie intsrior of Stich carriage-for the Use of any,
person therein;

cafry a spare wheel and tyre:and suitabié ‘tools f6F- the. replacement of ‘damaged of

punctured tyres;

énsure: that:no fittings which have. not been: appioved by, or. on behalf: of. ihe-Couincil
shall be attached to-or:carrigd eithierUpon.orinside-orioutside: the carriage:

+

4;  The proprietor of ‘a, hackney' carriags ‘shall caise: any taximeter-with ‘which the ‘cairiags 'is
provided o be- So_constriicted, attached:. and maintained as. to: ommiply with the following
Téquirements, thatis to say:-: | -

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

:(e)‘

m

other appliarices that it: shall not. be ‘practicable for any: \
‘6xcoept by breaking; damaginigior permaneritly.displacing the seals:or otherappliances.

the taxinistef shail ‘be: fitted with: a key, flag, orother device the turning ‘of which, will

bring the machinery.of thetaximeteiintoaction-and cause the-word "HIRED"to-appsar
on the-face of the'taximeter; : :

such key, fiag ‘or. other device shall bs €apable of being Tocked ih:suich & position that
the machineryof the taximeter is not in actién and that 6 fare Is recorded:on the face

of the taximeter; , i

‘when the machinery of the taximeter is-in action thére shall be recorded on, thie face of:
‘the taximeter in ‘clearly legible figiifes a.fare not: exceeding the rate: ofifare which the

 propriétor of driver is entitled to demand-and take. for ithe hire of the cartiage: by

distanceiin pursuance of the byelaw; invthiat behalf;

the word “FARE" shall ibe printed on the facé of the: taximeter in “pisin: léttsrs so a5
clearly to‘apply to:the fare recorded thereon; - '

the-taximeter shall be so placéd that'alllétters:and-figures ‘on:fhe-face thereofare atall
. limes plainly:Visible to:any person being conveyed in the:cartiage; iand:for that:purpose

the letters; and figures shall be:capable.of being suitably llluminated ‘dutifig any period
of hiring; E =2 ,
the taximeter and all the:fittings theréof shall’be so affixed toithe carriagasiith seals or

f6r any: person: to tamper with' them

Provislons: fegiilatiig the conduct of the proprietors arid' dFlvers of hackney cartlages
plylng within the district in: thelr several employments; and. determining whethisr' such
drivers shall wear.any and‘whatbadges-

5. ‘The.dfiverof.a:hackney carriage provided Witfi.a taximeter-shal-

(a)

When standing or plying for hire; Keep.the ke, flag or ofher-devicerfiited in pursuanes:
fatce of the taximeters |




-attendance. ‘with 'the. carriage

Page 74

(b) 'as scon :as: the icarriage is hired' by. distance, @nd béfore: beginning the Jotimey;. bring
- ‘the machinery of the taximetet intc:action'by:moving'the said key, flag or 6thar-device,
's0;‘that the: word: "HIRED? is legible: on the: face ‘of the taximeter- and. keep the
machinery:of the taximeter in action until the terivindtion:of the hiring;

(c) .cause:thé dial ofthe-taximeter to'be kept properiy:illuminated:th roughout.any. particf a
- hiring whi
Transport'Ligh

during the hours, of darknéss: a5 defined:for the: purposes, of ths Road

nig-Act, 1957, and also at:any‘other time'at the réqueést.of-the hirer;

A proprietor or driver of a, hackiiey icairisgé shiall .not tamper with ‘or. pefmit any’ persen to

‘tamper:with any taximeteriith Which the.carriage:is provided, With the fittings thereof; or with
‘the:seals:affixed thereto. ) -

The driver ‘of a hackiiey carriage: shall, when plying. for hife iR any-street-and ‘not ‘act aally
hired:- o plying

(&), procsed with reasonable:speed'fo:one of ite-stards ixsd by the byelawon thatbehalf;

(b) If & stand, &t the: time &f his arrival;, Is: occupled. by the: il number ‘of carrlages
- athorised to‘occupyit; proceed to;another stand; : '

(¢): on affiving ata stand not already. occupled by fhie full nifmber.of carriages authorised to

occupy-it, station the carriage immediatsly behind the carriage- or carriagés on ithe
stand-and s¢ as to face in the same:direction;

{d).from time-to time-when any othiér ¢aiiage immediately in front is ‘diiver offior moved

forward -cause His carriage to be moy
occeupied by-the:carriage driven off or

d forward 'so. 88 16 fill the place previously
Vied forward. ' ] ‘

A proprietor- of driver of a hackney carriage;, when standing or plying: for hire, Siail not, by

calling ‘out or-othenwisg; importiine aty pérson to. hire such carriage and’shall‘hot make use-

of the. s‘é‘r;vi‘ces: of any ;bther‘:pek rson for-the:purpose.

The driver of.a hackney. caitiage-shall-behavein a civil and orderiy manner andishall take:ali

feasonable precaitions:to ensurethe safety of pérsons.cofiveyedtin, or-entering ‘Gt alighting
fromthe vehicle:

The. prapristor or driver of'a hackneycarriage Whé: ias -agreed ‘or has been, hitgd 46 be:In,
nc ; e at' an appeinted; time .and place shall, Uriless dslayed ior
prevented by somé-sufficlent:cause;; punctually: attend with isuch-carrlage:at such ‘@ppointed:
time and place: ‘ ” o

The .driver of a hackney. carriage whien hired 16 drive to iany: particular destination shall,

subject: to"any- directions given by ‘thé hiréF, ‘proceed to that destination by the shorfest

:available rouite:

A proprietor or driveriof a hackney carriage:shall noticonvey, orpeimitts b& conveyed in such

carriage: any igreater’ timber of persons' than the niimbér of persons ‘specified-on the; plats
affixed to the-outside:of-the carriage: |




13.

14;

15, "

Pﬁage 75

If & badge has been Pprovided. by the: Cotificil and delivered to: the: driver of a ‘hackney,
carriage he shall, when standing or plyirig for hire, and'when hired, at. badge in such

) he ‘badge ito: any

position :and ‘manner, as 1o be plainly-visible. Siith- driver ‘shall
other person or‘causé oral llow:any other
The:driver of a hackiiey, carriage-so constriictd as-to carry Tuggage shall, whieti Tequested
by any.person hiring 6r'segking to hire:the carriage:-

(a). ‘convey a reaseriable quantity, of luggaige;
(b) afford:reasonableassistarice in loading and tinloading;

(¢). .afford reasonable assistarice in removing it o or from the; entrarice: of any-buildifig,
istation;.or. place:at which he‘maytake:up:of:set.down such person; )

3

A driver shall ‘not ‘carry luggage of the roof iof iy carrage except In a luggage' ack

-approved by or'on béhalf.5f the Coundil:

18- A ipropriéter of driver of a hackriey carrlage shall not cause GF siiffer any: advertisements

("other than that:approved by or on behalf-of the Counci’) 1o-be placed ior 5hy. part of sich
carriage’, A

Provisions-fixing:the staids of hacknéy ¢afriages

17.

‘hackney'cairiages as is’specified i the.list:-

_Each of the several places specified i the-following Tist shall be a:stand for:such number.of

- Street Déscription, of Stand. Numiberiof
‘ Jaxi-cabs:
accomimodated.

-

Grosvenor House:service: @ppositesnirance to Bus, - 8
road adjeining Station..  Statjon
Road

THe Oxebode’ - Outside G.p:0.  ° 10

‘Quay:Stréat Outslde nightclubiin:Quay 7
(23130 -2:30 hrs) Strest o

PRIVATE LAND =PLYING FOR HIRE FROR

RANK:RESTRICTED TOPERMIT HOLDERS:
ONLY" -,

British Rail Station:
Forecourt




Page 76

For fixing the rates or-faresito be-paid for such hackiiey carriages within‘the.district and for

securing'the die publication of

19:

taximeéter,

such fares

driver-of a. hackney: cariage: shall be enitied to demand and take for the

The proprietor:or

hire of the carriage-the rate. or fare ;prescribed by the follswing table, the: rate-or fare being

calculated by, distance unlessithe hirer expréss-at.the commencement.ofthe hiring his desire
to.engage by:time:, ;

Provided always thatwhere a-hackney carriage:furished with a taxifiigtar ‘ghTajI‘ be hired: by

distance the ‘proprietor or' dfivier: thereof shall not be -entitled 5 demand and taks :a fare

greater than that recorded on the. face of ‘fhe. taxireter; -save' for- any extra’charges
‘authorised by’ the following table. which it

may, not: be ‘possible -to recsrd on' the-face: of the

Fares:f6r.Distance - Set:annially:

(8) "The-propileter-of a hackney-carrlags shal cause a:siatement f the fares fixed by the:

byetaw: in that behalf to bé. &xhibited Inside the Carriage; In clearly distinguishable:
‘letters-and figtires, - .

(b). "The proprietor or diiver of & hackney carrisge: beating a statement of fares in
5a_gcp‘|:dahcé§Wittj this byelaw._shall tnpf‘wilfﬁI[Y or hegIjg_enﬂtly{caDTS“e,:-O’Efé’Uffgr-:the letters, or
figures: in the :statement 'to be conceéaled ‘or rendered illegible :at ‘any" time ‘while- thé

carriage!is'plying orbeing:used-for-hire.

Provisions ‘securing the safe ‘custody and’ redelivery 'of any property’ accidentally: left in

hackney carriages, :and fixing:the:charges to_be made:in respect theresf

20.

The: proprietor or driver.of & hidckney carriage shall imiiedliately after the-terihitation of any.

hiring or"as soon .as practicable; thereafter: carefully. search 'the .cariiage. for-any property:

‘which Ty have been accidentally &ftitherein.

The proprietéior-driver of a hackney:cafriage-shall; i any propefty accidentally jeft therglby

any person who may have beéfconveyed:in the.cafriage be found:or handed to:him:

(@) €aryitias:soon as possible and in;any-event withir. 48 Rours; If not soorer clairied by

orion,behalf of its owner;:to the office:of the Council, and Teave, It I the custody of the
officer it charge:of the:office:on his:giving areceiptfor it, ’ ‘

(b): be entifled té Fecsive from any -person to"whom the property Shall be redeiivered af

‘améunt equat to. five pence in: the- pound of fs: estimated value (or the. fare: for the:

distance from the place of finding to the:office.of the Council, whichever is the greater)
but:Rotmore thanfive pounds: : ) '

Penalties

22.

Every person who shall offerid against any of ‘thess byelaws ‘shall- be: fiable -6 summary
conviction‘to a fine not-exceeding twent ' ' :
further fingé not'exceeding:two: pounds fo
.conviction‘therefor. ’

r each day durin

‘pounds:and in the case of‘a: cofitinuing offence 16 a
g'which-the offence: continues: after-




Page 77

‘PROVISIONSOF THE TOWN POLICE CLAUSES: CT, ! 1847

APPLICABLE TO MOTOR' VEHICLES LET FOR HIRE

23.. The follewing; prov:snons ‘of the Town Police Cl:
let'for hire as if they were interms. appllcab]e\ih

‘Section:37

‘Section 40

Sectioii.41

Section42

Seéction 43:

Section 44

Section 45

;Selciibn 46

‘Section 47

. Section 48

SEEtioh 50

S&étionis]

Section 52,

Sectioh:59

Section'67

uses:Act, 1847, shall apply to'motof:Vehicles;
éréto, that isifo say:

(Comissioners:may:license | hackney:carriages) -

(Personstapplying for licence to sign  reqiiisition)

(What:shall be-specified. i the licence)

(Licencéito’be registered)-

(Licence:to:b8 in force for one-year only)

{Netice to be.given by, proprietors.of. any:charige of abode)

. (Penalty for plying for hifs. WIthout a Ilcence)

(Divers not:to-act without fifst obtaining a licence)

(Pénalty for drivers acting WithioGt licence or: Propriéters  employing
unlicensed: dnvers) _ SE
(Proprietor-to. retain:licence of driverwhile |n ‘his: éifiploy a_n,_d*te ?Pdel‘l"C’ef it
before justices;on:coimplaint)- ] T .

(Propnetor toeturhlicefice to. dnver when' leavmg his'service unléss gu1|ty"’

of: mlsconduct in which:case’ propnetor to: summon drlver)

(Licences :of propnetors or drivers; may' ‘be suspended; ‘6n, a isecond.

conwctlon)

(Number of persons: o ‘be: carfigd ii & hackngyf carriage to be: painted

‘tHereon)

(Penalty for neglect to eXhlblt thé: number, o foF: refusal to carry ‘thé
prescribed. number)

(Penalty far permitting: parsonis to:ride without corisent of hirer)ard

(Péﬁgltyiandi comp‘erisat'ibn"‘for'da'ﬁiég‘ Ing-car ria“g‘é).

EROVISIONS: OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE BYELAWS
APPLICABLE TO MOIOR VEHICLESILET rOR, HiRE’

24.

“The following-provisions:ofithe hackney carnage

hlre as’if they'were’m terms applicable: thereto t

Byeélaw 2

Byelaw 3

(Regulatmg the displayof the ‘number ofeach, Qéfﬁa"gégé@;@m%mg iiwith
thie number:of itsilicerics): - =

(Reglilating how:earriagesiaré (6 be furnished.of, provided)’




Byelaw 9

Byelaw 10

Byelaw. 11

Byelaw*12;

Byelaw 13

Byelaw 14

Byelaw. 15

Byelaw 16,

Byelaw 20

Byelaw 21

Byelaw 22

Repeal. of Byelaws

Page 78

‘‘‘‘‘

%hlSapassengers)
(Drivéito attend punctually at appéinted place)

(Drivertorproce&d to destination by shiorteést:possible route)

fe

{(Number of persons. carried must’ not exceed the- figure: specnfled on thee

plate)
(Driver to.wear badgé:if provided: by Councif)
(Driver to carry-aridiassist with luggage)

(Dnver Aot to.carry luggage on roof of: carrlage except in approved luggage

rack)
’ Q(Ii's"pilay of advef{isem‘eﬁ“’t‘s")-

“(Carnage to be searched after @ach :hifing: for property :accidentally, left

therem)
(Dusposal of: property accidentally: left in carnage)

(Penames for-offences agalnst these Byélaws)

25, The byslaws relating to ackney carriagés refeired' o in e Scriedule hereto. afe. fiérsby

repealed:




Page 79

THE SCHEDULE

:Date of Byelaws: By whom:made

Dafeof
confirmat/on

Byrwhom¢onfirmed

29 OGtobieF 1947 © THeCouncil

"11 December 1947 .

. ;Majesty-"K g George Vl

;One of- th Pririci

3Octobei1951 . " ¢ 44 Januay1963 R e i
12May19§6 o R 12:Noveinber 1956; :One of Hef Majestys _
) , - L o SPrrncrpaI Secretanes ofState
13Decermber 1958 ¥ OFebwaryigsd. v W e
I

17 Aprl 1962

" 5Juhe 1962

5May1965 ' 23August{96s R
14 May"]g?O ) N ' e .,f‘ ) K0} _ 28 August 1970 } " o =0t ‘ll u i
23 February 1971 T 17 Bpril 1971 oo e

The foregoing Byelaws wefe made and adopted -at a, meetlng of:the ‘Council o the: 13th day of'

October, 1971.

Dated this 13th dayof Deceriber 1971;

;IN WITNESS: whereof the Common
Seal of the: MAYOR ALDERMEN

AND CITIZENS’OF THE._ TY-OF
GLOUCESTER was’ hereunto affixed
in.the presence of:-

H, WORRALL
_Mayor

D. HALL. '
Town Clerk

LS.

‘Seal No. 25755




Page 80 |

THE.GLOUCESTER CORPORATION ACT, 1970

Provisions 15 (1) The prows;ons of the T
as to motor-
vehlcles Tet

. Pohce Clauses Act 1847 and:of sectlon 179 of
shail extend 6 empower thie ‘Corporation to
declarlng that to the:extént. determlned by the: byelaws
ns:and: the byelaws of the:Cor

1875 c. 55

Provided thiat this section shall ot applyts =

1960 ¢.16 “(a) a Publié-§&#vics vehicle-as defined Insection 117:0f the!Road Traffis
Act1960; or'

(b) a motor vehicle keptzand used.ordinarily-forthe purpeserof being let:
" o hirs by ‘the: :day ‘or-forlenger pérlods of hire;,or

©

business;

~ (d) any'vehicle'belonging to or’ used by-thi
purpose:oficarrying passengers:an
their: rallway stations or rallway premlses

British Ranwaystoard for the.
‘luggage to or from’ ‘any-of’

orto the driveis o condictors.of such vehicles:

_ Provided also*that'nothing’in this section shal

. MpOWeT the Corporation to-
fix the snte

: otor'vehicle: standlng or
] irel in any ranway,stauon or rallway premises’ or in ‘any’ yard
belongmg to ‘the :Bitish- RailWays. Board. except: with: the consent of‘the
British Rallways Board.

1958 ¢V (2) Section 103:of the;Gloucester CorporationAct 1958 1§ héFeby fépealed,

‘The Secretary of State-thus day
' i}

are to- come nto operatlon as the
firs day. of Apiil 1972
Home:Office | K. PLWITNEY-
Whitehall '
22nd Febiuary 1972 An Assistant Under Secretaryiof State




Page 81 Agenda ltem 11

Gloucester City Council

Committee : Licensing and Enforcement

Date : 18" October 2011

Subject : Members Update and 3 Year Work Plan for
Licensing and Enforcement Committee

Decision Type : For Information

Ward : All

Report By : Gill Ragon, Group Manager of Environmental
Health and Regulatory Services

No. Of Appendices : None

Reference No. : ES21123

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1  To outline to Members, details of key Licensing Activities carried out in the last
quarter, including feedback on Appeal Cases heard by the Magistrates Court
against decisions made by this Committee. Furthermore, to outline a 3 year work
plan for Licensing and Enforcement Committee quarterly meetings so that Members
can see which Policy matters are due for consideration over the next 3 years.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 Members note the contents of this report.

3.0 Updates on Licensing Activities in the last Quarter

3.1 Taxi Marshalling Scheme

On 29" July a new security firm took over the taxi marshalling scheme in Eastgate
Street. This contract has been renewed at a much lower cost and offers additional
security support through the use of head cameras, close liaison with the local SIA
doormen, use of pub watch radio and fast response back up should problems arise.
The funding was secured through the Safer Gloucester Partnership and will cover
the scheme for 12 months. Just recently (during September) Liquid Nightclub have
liaised with the Police and agreed to provide Taxi Marshalls on a Wednesday night
23:30 to 04:00. Liquid will be paying for this and using Cuff Security, these are the
same Marshalls we use. This will not impact on the contribution that they are also
providing towards the Marshalls on Saturday and Sunday, it just means that there
will be security on all 3 nights.

3.2 Road Closure in Eastgate Street

From 26" August 2011, Gloucestershire Highways in liaison with Gloucestershire
Constabulary have partially closed Eastgate Street from one side, making the road
a one-way system on Friday and Saturday nights. The partial closure was
implemented to try and reduce the number of vehicles in Eastgate Street on a
Friday and Saturday Night, preventing vehicles from obstructing the street by
conducting three-point turns in the road etc and also to make it safer for pedestrians
and easier for emergency services to gain access when needed.




3.3

3.4

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 82

The Taxi rank has remained operational and the Marshalls have welcomed this
change. Vehicles now have to enter the restricted section from the town centre side
and exit out onto Barton Gates. The side roads have not been affected by the
changes, bollards are erected in Eastgate Street itself (adjacent to Nettleton Road
and GL1).

We continue to receive feedback from the Trade and the Police about this closure,
both parties have indicated that they are happy with this scheme. The Police in
particular have seen improvements in the accessing this Street for emergencies
during the weekend nights.

Appeal Court cases

On 18" July an Appeal was heard at Cheltenham Magistrates Court to consider the
decision made by Gloucester City Council’s Licensing and Enforcement Committee
regarding a driver that was convicted of plying for hire on 29™ October 2010. The
Committee considered this driver’s conviction on 31%' January 2011 and resolved to
suspend his Private Hire Driver's licence until 13™ August 2011 for two
reasons: proven breaking of legislation as detailed in the report and breach of trust
by placing passengers in a position whereby they would not be
insured. Cheltenham Magistrates allowed the appeal determining no action be
taken on the Appellant. In addition the Court awarded that the Council pay up to
£250 costs to the driver on the grounds that they made an unreasonable decision
because they had not considered his 14 years of good record of behaviour.

On 5" August, Gloucester Magistrates Court considered an appeal from a Private
Hire Driver against a decision made by the Licensing and Enforcement Committee
to revoke his licence on the grounds that he was not a fit and proper person
following a conviction for common assault. The Court decided that the driver was
considered to be a fit and proper person and that the Council should reinstate his
licence. This was principally because although he had been convicted of assault
occasioning ABH his sentence was at the very lowest of the scale, his wife gave
credible oral evidence on oath, he provided 3 character references which proved to
be crucial documentation to demonstrate what the driver had done to improve his
ability to cope and improve his anger towards women. This information was not
made fully available at the Committee hearing, so the Council had not made an
unreasonable decision at the time. There was no award of costs to either party.

On 12" September an appeal was heard at Gloucester Magistrates Court to
consider a decision made by the Licensing and Enforcement Committee to suspend
another Private Hire Driver’s Licence after he was convicted of plying for hire on
29™ October. The Court upheld the decision of the Council to suspend his Private
hire Driver’s Licence for the remainder of the period. There was no award of costs
to the Council.

There is still an appeal outstanding on the All Nations Community Centre following a
review of their Club Premises Certificate in July 2010. We hope to be able to brief
members on the outcome in December 2011.



Page 83

5.0 Future Work

5.1 The table below outlines our proposed work plan for Full Licensing and
Enforcement Committee meetings over the next 3 years. As the years goes on,
additional matters may need to be brought to Members attention or further requests
may be presented for decision. However, the items below illustrate expected
matters that are scheduled for consideration Committee dates are in bold and
shaded grey.

LICENSING
AND POLICY ITEM
ENFORCMENT
COMMITTEE

18™ October Pedicab Licensing Report

2011 Training on Taxi and Private Hire Disciplinary Hearings

13" December | Advertising Boards and Tables and Chairs Policy

2011 Review of Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Policy
(consultation)

January 2012 Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Policy 12 weeks consultation.
Advertising Boards Policy and Tables and Chairs Policy under 6
weeks consultation.

February 2012 Inform Chair of L and E Committee of proposals to Taxi fees,
Consult on fees over 28 days

March 2012 Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Policy for approval.
Advertising Boards and Tables and Chairs Policy for approval
(to take effect April 2012).

Update report on Taxi fee status OR Report to consider
objection on fees (fees to take effect 15' April 2012)
Update on proposed Taxi Tariff (to take effect May 1' 2012)

April 2012 Consult on Taxi Meter Tariff over 14 days

May 2012 Members Training

June 2012 Update Committee on Taxi Meter Tariff set
Review of Gambling Act Statement of principles

July & August Consult on Gambling Act Statement of Principles over 12 weeks

2012

September 2012 | Gambling Act Statement of principles (to take effect Dec 2012)

December 2012

February 2013 Inform Chair of L and E Committee of proposals to Taxi fees,
Consult on fees over 28 days

March 2013 Update report on Taxi fee status OR Report to consider
objection on fees (fees to take effect 15' April 2013)

Update on proposed Taxi Tariff (to take effect May 15' 2013)

April 2013 Consult on Taxi Meter Tariff over 14 days

May 2012 Members Training

June 2013 Update Committee on Taxi Meter Tariff set
Review of Licensing Act Statement of principles

July 2013 Consult on Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Principles over 12
weeks

September 2013 | Licensing Act 2003 Statement of principles (to take effect
January 2014)

December 2013




Page 84

February 2014 Inform Chair of L and E Committee of proposals to Taxi fees,

Consult on fees over 28 days

March 2014 Sex Establishment Policy Review

Update report on Taxi fee status OR Report to consider
objection on fees (fees to take effect 1 April 2014)
Update on proposed Taxi Tariff (to take effect May 1% 2014)

April 2014 Consult on Taxi Meter Tariff over 14 days
May 2014 Members Training
June 2014 Update Committee on Taxi Meter Tariff set

Sex Establishment Policy Review (to take effect July 2014)

September 2014 | Review of Advertising Board and Tables and Chairs Policy

December 2014 | Review of Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Policy

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

Conclusions

At each quarterly Licensing and Enforcement Committee meeting, we will update
Members on any activities carried out in the last quarter, this will include a summary
of what has happened in the team, including number of new Licences, any
enforcement work carried out and details of any appeals or prosecutions held, the
outcomes of those hearings and any further appeals pending.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications attached to the recommendations in this report.
Legal Implications

There are none at this time.

Risk Management Implications /dentify all key risks (scoring 8 and above) for the
recommendation including the impact and likelihood of the risk occurring and what
measures will be taken to mitigate the risk.

In Compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy any decisions made
which are unreasonable or unlawful could be open to legal challenge resulting in

loss of image, reputation and potential financial penalty.

People Impact Assessment (PIA):
Please ensure you complete this section even if a PIA is not required.

Is a PIA required? Yes | No | Explanation: Not for this report, a
x | separate PIA will be carried out on

each policy as it is brought to
Committee

Has an initial PIA screening | Yes | No | Explanation: as above

been completed? X

Has a full PIA been Yes | No | Explanation: as above

completed? X




Page 85

Is the PIA available? Yes | No | Explanation:

Has the PIA identified any | Yes* | No

negative impacts on any X
protected characteristic or
community cohesion? *Please ensure PIA is available

Any Further Relevant Information:
None

11.0 Other Corporate Implications (this may include Community Safety,
Environmental, Staffing, Trade Union)

None
Background Papers :  None
Published Papers :  None
Person to Contact :  Lisa Wilkes

Tel: 396047
E-mail: lisa.wilkes@gloucester.gov.uk



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	minutes document number 2

	5 Minutes of Licensing Sub-Committees
	8 Application for a Private Hire Vehicle Licence by Mr Selwyn Lloyd-Taylor, under Section 48 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
	ES21122-Appendix A (2)
	ES21122-Appendix B (2)
	appendix c
	ES21122-Appendix D

	9 Street Trading Appeal - Hot Food Unit, Cemetery Road, Gloucester
	appendices

	10 Types of Hackney Vehicles
	ES21121 Appendix A
	ES21121 Appendix B
	ES21121 Appendix C

	11 Members Update and 3 Year Work Plan for Licensing and Enforcement Committee

